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North Carolina State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish
within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAF) and
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants, Pursuant to those requirements, we are pleased fo present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Lenoir for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012.

The financial statements and supplemental schedules contained herein have been audited
by Eric Bowman, a licensed certified public accountant, and his unqualified opinion is
included in the Financial Section of this report. The report itself, however, is presented
by the City, which is responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is repotted ina
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City’s financial activity have been included.

The report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical, and
Compliance. The Infroductory Section, which is unaudited, inctudes this transmittal
letter, list of principal officials, the City’s organizational chart, and the Government
Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting, The Financial Section includes the independent auditor’s report,
management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, notes to the
financial statements, other supplementary information, and various fund schedules. The
Statistical Section, which is unaudited, contains selected fiscal, economic, and
demographic data designed to provide a more complete understanding of the City.
Several tables in this section present data for the past ten years. Finally, the Compliance
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Section presents reports and schedules required by the federal and state Single Audit
Acts, which are discussed in a later paragraph.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Lenoir was part ofa
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal
grantor agencies, The standards governing single audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Compliance
section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAF) require that management provide a
narrative infroduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A. and should be read in conjunction
with it. The City of Lenoir’s MD&A can be found immediately following the repott of
the independent auditor in the Financial Section of this report.

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (City of
Lenoir), as well as its component unit. Component units are legally separate entities for
which the primary government is financially accountable. Discretely presented
component units are reported in a separate column. in the basic financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to distinguish
their financial positions and results of operations from those of the primary government.
The City of Lenoir ABC Board and Lenoir Tourism Development Authority are reported
as a discretely presented component unit.

City of Lenoir Profile

Located in the foothills of the Blue Ridge Mountains, the City of Lenoir is the county
seat of Caldwell County. Incorporated in 1851 and named in honor of Revolutionary
War hero, General William Lenoir, the City has become an industrial center of
northwestern North Carolina, as well as being the hub of commercial and government
activity in the county, Lenoir is the largest incorporated area in the County and serves a
population of 18,261, All the major cultural, medical, governmental and financial
activities of the County are located in the City. Lenoir enjoys a temperate climate with a
mild four-season year. We are located within an hour’s drive to the northwest to enjoy
ski slopes and the Blue Ridge Parkway, and a five-hour drive to the southeast to enjoy the
white beach sands of the Atlantic Ocean.

The City is empowered by State statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation. It
engages in continual review of areas of potential future annexation by petition and
statute. The last major annexation of the City was in 2001 when it amexed
approximately 850 parcels of land into its corporate limits.




The City has a council/manager form of government. The mayor is elected to a four-year
term and the seven members of the council are elected to staggered four-year terms.
Council members hold policy-making and legislative authority. They are also
responsible for adopting the budget and appointing the City Manager. The manager is
responsible for implementing policies, managing daily operations, and appointing
department heads.

The City provides a full tange of services. These services include police and fire
protection, solid waste collection, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and
zoning, community and economic development, recreational activities, cemeteries and
grounds-keeping, water freatment and distribution, and wastewater collection and
treatment. In addition to general governmental activities, the City has a Municipal
Service Taxing District in the downtown area. The District is operated and devoted to
development within the taxing district. As the City of Lenoir governing body exercises
oversight of the District, this activity is included in the reporting entity. The report
includes all the City’s activities in maintaining these services,

The City also extends financial suppotf to certain agencies and authorities to assist their
efforts in serving citizens. Among these are the Western Piedmont Council of
Governments and the Foothills Regional Airport Authority.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Lenoir’s financial planning
and control. The City’s budget is adopted by ordinance in accordance with the General
Statutes of North Carolina, which requires estimated revenues and expenditures to be
balanced. The budget includes only expenditures expected during the fiscal year, The
budget is adopted on a modified accrual basis. All expected operating funds are included
in the Budget Ordinance and are expended in accordance with the adopted ordinance.
The fiscal year budget, by State Statute, begins July 1 and ends June 30,

North Carolina General Statutes also provide for capital projects and special revenue
grants to be adopted for the life of the project and/or grant. The City of Lenoir has
several such projects includes in this report. These include the Fairview Street bridge,
downtown streetscape, the greenway, the Fit Community project, HOME and CDBG
projects, and several public safety grants.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund (e.g. general), function (e.g. public safety),
and department (e.g. {inance). Department heads may request the City Manager, acting
as Budget Officer, make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments can be approved by the City Manager. Actual-to-
budget comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this
comparison is presented as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental
funds. . For other activities with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is presented
in the Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statement section of this report. Also
included in this section are project-length actual-to-budget comparisons for which a
project-length budget has been adopted.
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Economie condition and outlook

Small business growth in Lenoir has been impacted by national economic frends as
evidenced by fewer business start-ups during fiscal year 2011-201, The number of new
jobs in the downtown area showed a slight decrease due to the loss of several jobs
resulting from the closure of various retail stores. Private investment in building
renovations continued but at a lower rate than in previous years.

Major initiatives

Unemployment in the region and the turmoil in the national economy contributed to an
increase in vacant retail space in Lenoir during fiscal year 2011-2012, The 308,141
square feet of vacant retail space includes the relocation and consolidation of two
furniture and home furnishing businesses which are typically among the hardest hit
during a recession. . Private investment in the downtown revitalization area was less than
the previous year. Vacant and underutilized industrial and manufacturing space continues
to be a challenge for Lenoir.

To continue the city’s on-going efforts in the revitalization of downtown, the streetscape
project continued during this fiscal year. The re-working of overhead utilities to

underground, plantings, new sculpture, the updating of the Harper Avenue sidewalks and
new uplown activities have created a more pleasant environment for downtown business.

The City continues to construct additional segments to our greenway. We now have
approximately 10.0 miles of paved greenway within the corporate Jimits. The projectis a
partnership involving the N.C. Department of Transportation, the City of Lenoir, and
Caldwell County Pathways Committee,

Financial information

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to protect the assets of the City from loss, theft or misuse, and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, buf not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met, The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be received and (2) the
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single audit - As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the City also is
responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control structure to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. The results of the City’s
single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws
and regulations relative to grant administration.
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Other information

Independent audit — N. C. General Statutes require an annual independent financial
audit of al] local government units in the State. Eric Bowman, CPA, has audited the
financial records of the City and his opinion has been included in this report. His audit
was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly,
included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as he
considered necessary in the circumstances. His unqualified opinion indicates that the
accompanying basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition
to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet
the requirements of the federal Single audit Act of 1984 and related OMB Circular A-
133.

The auditor’s repoxts related specifically to the single audit are included in the
Compliance Section.

Awards — The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting (o the City of Lenoir for ils comprehensive annual financial report for the year
ended June 30, 2011, This was the fourteenth consecutive year that the City of Lenoir
has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government unit must publish an casily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of
Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility
for another certificate,

Acknowledgements — We recognize (hat responsibility for the contents of this report is
the City’s but it would be inappropriate not to mention the invaluable assistance of the
staff in the Morganton, North Carolina, office of our independent auditor, Eric Bowman.
Assistance and cooperation was also provided by the City’s various departments and is
appreciated by the City Manager and Finance Director. “Thank you” is extended 1o you,
the Mayor and Lenoir City Council, for your continued support.

As required by N, C. General Statute 159,34, a copy of this report will be filed with the
Secretary of the North Carolina Local Government Commission. In addition, a copy will
be sent to the City Clerk to be available for public inspection.

Sincerely,
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Association of the United States and Canada to
government vaits and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Executive Director

xii




S. Eric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT )
403 Soulh Green Street.

P.O. Box 1476

Morganton, NG 28680-1476
Telephone (828) 438-1065
Fax (828)438-9117

Independent Audikor!s Repoxrt

To the Honorable Mayox
and Members of the Clty Council of the
City of Lenoir, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying flnancial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
prasented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Lenoir, North Carolina, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of oontents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Ciky of Lenoir’s management. Our
vesponsibility 1s to express opinions on these basie financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the flnancial statements of the City of
Lenoir ABC Board, %hose financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the City of Lenoixr ABC Board, 1s based
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the Unlted States of America and the standards applicable to
Financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
basic Financial statements are free of material misstatement, The financial
statements of City of Lenoir ARC Board were not audited in accordance with
Covernment Auditing Standards. BAn audit includes examining, on z tast basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclesures in the financial statements,
An audit zlso includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
signiflcant estimates made by wanagement, as well as svaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report
of the other audltors provide a reasonable basis for our opinlons,

In our opiniton, based on our audit and the zmeport of the other
auditors, the financlal statements referred to above present falrly, in all
material respects, the Financial position of the governmental activities, the
pusiness—type activities, the discretely prosented component uniis, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatlon of the City of
Lenoir, North Carolina as of June 30, 2012, and the raspective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the
raspective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of Aumaricva,




In accordance with Government Audlting Standaxds, we have also issued
our report dated August 24, 2012 on our consideration of City of Lenoir's
intsrnal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, conbtracts and grants. The
purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
contrals over financial reporting and ¢ompliance and the resulis of that
teating and not to provide an oplnlon on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance., That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in considering the Iesults of our audit.

Bccounting principles generally acoepted in the United States of
America require that Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Law
Enforcement Qfficers’ Special Separation Allowante and Other Post Employment
Benefite (OPEB) Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employsex
Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements,
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statéments, 1is
requirad by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
ba an egsential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context,
We have applied cerxtain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordence with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquirles of managewment about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic finangial
statements, and othexr knowledgs we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidencs to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinigns on the
flnancial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial
statenents of the City of Lenoir, The introductory sectiom, combining and
individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a requlred part of the financial statements. The acoonmpanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented fox
purposes of additional analysis as requived by U.8. Office of Management and
Budget Clreoular A~133, Audite of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and is also not
a required part of the financial statements, The combining and individual
fund finanolal statements, budgetary scheduvles;, other schedules and the
schadule of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the. financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures appliled in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
undexlying accounting and other records ussd to prepare the financial
statements or to the Ffinancial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. The combining and individuwal fund financial
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the schedule of




axpenditures of fedexal and State awards have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are falrly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whale, The introductory and statistioal
sections have not been subjected to the audlting procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express
an opinien or provide any assurance on 1t,

8. Eric Bowman, P.A.
Cextified Public Accountant

Morganton, North Carolina
Bugust 24, 2012




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2012

As management of the City of Lenoir, we offer readers of the City of Lenoir’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Lenoir for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Lenoir exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal
year by $63,955,175 (nef assets).

o The government’s total net assets increased by $106,388 with a $972,866
decrease in governmental activities and a $1,079,254 increase in business-type
activities.

« As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Lenoir’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $5,320,604 a decrease of $243,324 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 61.42 percent of this total amount
or $3,267,840 is available for spending at the government’s discretion.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General
Fund was $3,028,662 or 18.75 percent of total general fond expenditures for the
fiscal year.

s The City of Lenoir’s total debt decreased by $2,368,169 or 12.54 percent during
the current fiscal year.

Qverview of the Financial Statemenfts

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City of Lenoir’s
basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements (sec Figure 1), The basic financial statements present
two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the
financial condition of the City of Lenoir,




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2012

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figmre 1
Manégement’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide | Fund Notés {o the
Financial ’ Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary > Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the
Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term
information about the City’s financial status,

The next statements (Exhibits C through 1) are Fund Finaneial Statements. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City’s government. These
statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements, There are four
patts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental fimds statements; 2) the
budgetary comparison statement; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4} the fiduciary
fund statements.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2012

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes, The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the
notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the City’s individual
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this
part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a
broad overview of the City’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term
information about the City’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets are the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities.
Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the City’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental
activities; 2) business-type activities and 3) component units. The governmental
activities include most of the City’s basic services such as public safety, transportation,
environmental protection, economic and physical development, cultural and recreational,
and general administration. Property taxes, state and federal grants, and state-shared
revenues finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the
City charges customers to provide. These include the water and scwer services offered
by the City of Lenoir. The final category is the component units. Although legally
separate from the City, the ABC Board and LTDA Board are important to the City
because the City exercises control over the Boards by appointing its members. The ABC
Board is also required to distribute a portion of its profits to the City.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A and B of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Ienoir, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to
ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the
funds of City of Lenoir ean be divided into two categories: governmental fands and
proprietary funds.
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Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of
the Ciiy’s basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on

how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are Ieft at
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified acerual accounting which provides
a shori~term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financia) statements give
the reader a detailed shott-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or
less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The relationship
between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds is deseribed in a reconciliation that is a part of the
fund financial statements.

The City of Lenoir adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the
General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from
the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council
about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to
obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement ptovided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City
complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison
statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format,
language, and classifications as the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by
the Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the Council; 3) the actual resources,
charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference
or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — City of Lenoir has only one type of proprictary fund. Enterprise
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide finaneial statements. The City of Lenoir uses an enterprise fund fo
account for its water and sewer activity. This fund is the same as those functions shown
in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Asscis and the Statement of
Activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 28 of this
report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the
City of Lenoir’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
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employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 60 of
this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Lenoir, assets exceeded liabilities by

$63,955,172 as of June 30, 2012 (figure 2).

The City of Lenoir’s Net Assets

Grennafal Bisinessype
Adivitics Adivitics Totd
2012 201 212 p.h1l 012 2011
Cluert and Qlber Assits $ solgB6 $ a3l § O 3AT0% $ 41007 § 9832 § 1030048
Chpital Assts 68381 275090 45,883,335 420144 ALY N353
Total Assels $ PSI0T $ 226 $ 98038 § {4BABL § X6l § BT
LapTamliailities $ 4 $ 38MEs $ 145190 $ 16330R6 $ TI8AN0  § 20212481
Qter Lighlities 38656 284100 46732 4314 75383 728
Total Lihlities $ 36040 $ 4183 $ 4988 § 167000 § IREHIR b A0197A4
Nt Assels;
Trvested incapital assets,
retofrdated it $ 47318 § U700 § 35BS $ 0INAG § KA § A8
Restricted 2027 20869 208274 20869
Uresticted 23555 3337244 331142 340725 SE36927 6D
Total Nets Asxts $ WINN7 S 00843 § UBIR BB § B9512 § BER
Figure 2

The largest portion of the City of Lenoit’s net assets (87.2 percent) reflects its investiment
in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, etc.), less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City of Lenoir uses those assets i
provide services to its citizens which make those assets not available for future spending.
Although the City of Lenoir’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. An additional portion of the City of Lenoir’s net assets (2.55%) represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used or that are not
spendable. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($6,061,287) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The increase in net
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assets is due mainly to the completion of the Raw Water Intake at the Rhodhiss Water

Plant,

Several particular aspects of the City’s financial operations influenced the total
unassigned net assets:

o Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a tax
collection percentage of 94.39
» Adherence to the adopted budget

Governmental activities: Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by
$972,866. (Figure 3) Key elements of this decrease ate as follows:

. Depreciation of capital assets

Revenues:
Program revemks:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital granfs and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Unrestricted intergovermmental
Other
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Publicsafery
Trensportation
Pnvironmental protection
Feonomic and physical development
Quiture and recrectional
Interast and fees
Water and sewer
“Total expenses

Tricrease in net assets
Net assets, July |

Prior Period Adjustment

Net assets, June 30

City of Lenoir Changes in Net Assets

Tigure 3
Governmental Activities Business-fype Activities Tatals

2012 2011 W12 2011 2012 2011
$ 211774 5 1872686 5 7575832 0§ TAHLT3 B 9693556 £ 5114470
2,871,333 2,006,622 - - 2,871,333 2,006,622
202,102 868,037 500,000 1,374,704 702,102 2.242.741
6,824,494 7,370,866 - - 6,824,454 7,370,866
3,840,310 3,762,006 - - 3,840,310 3,762,006
1,538,309 1,524,091 - - 1,538,300 1,524,001
330,576 447,37 . 52,733 48,677 383,300 496,048
17,724,848 17,851,679 8,128,565 8,605,174 25,853,413 26,516,853
3,195,538 2,521,169 - - 3,195,538 2,521,169
8215430 8,609,721 - - 8215430 8,600,721
2097876 2,131,705 - - 2,097,876 2,131,705
703,246 829,299 - - 703,245 829,299
2,197,798 1,683,790 - - 2,197,798 1,683,750
2,196,855 2,051,873 - - 2,196,855 2,051,873
90,971 106,965 - - 90,971 106,965
7,049,311 6,748,649 7,049,311 6,748,649
18,697,714 17,934,522 7,049,311 6,748,649 25,741,005 24,_683,171
(972,866) (82,343 1,719,254 1,916,525 106,388 1,833,682
30,093,453 30,196,705 33,755,331 31,838,806 63,848,784 62,035,511
{20,409) - (20409
$£ 29120587 $ 30093453 § 34834585 § 33755331 $ 63955172 § 63,848,784
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FPigure 4 is a graphic presentation of functional expenses with related program revenues
and grants

City of Lenoir
Expenses and Program Revenues and Operating Grants — Governmental Activities
Figure 4
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Figure § is a graphic presentation of governmental revenues by source.

Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities
Figure 5

0% 1% 1%

B Ad valorem taxes Other taxes & Heenses DUnrestricted intergovernmental
DOReslricted intergovernimental B Permits & fees BSales & seryices
EInvestment eamnings Obiscellancous MPayment from ABC Board

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Lenoit’s net
assets by $1,079,254. Key clements of this increase are as follows:

s Completion of the Raw Water Intake
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Lenoir uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds, The focus of the City of Lenoi’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resowces.
Such information is useful in assessing the City of Lenoir’s financing requirements.
Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Lenoir, At the end of the
current fiscal year, available fund balance of the General Fund was $3,584,626, while
total fund balance reached $5,382,209. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both available fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures, Available fund balance represents 22.20 percent of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 33.33 percent of that same amount. The
increase in unassigned fund balance is due mainly to the required amount for the
Stabilization for State Statue decreased.

At June 30, 2012, the governmental funds of City of Lenocir reported a combined fund
balance of $5,320,604 a 4.38 percent decrease over last year. Included in this change in
fund balance are decreases in the General Fund and, Special Revenue Fund; with an
increase in the Capital Projects Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights Generally, budget amendments fall into one of
three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made 1o
recognize new finding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants;
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

During the fiscal year, the City found it necessary to revise the General Fund budget.
These amendments are summarized as follows:

General Government, Transportation, and Environmental Protection were increased by
$903,322, while Public Safety, Economic & Physical Development, and Cultural &
Recreation decreased by $223,322. The resulting $680,000 increase was funded by a
combination of increased revenues, financing package and appropriated fund balance.
The increase in budget was for economic development grants, lease buyout and street
repairs.
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Proprietary Funds. The City of Lenoir’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unassigned net
assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $3,311,422.
The fund’s net assets increased by $1,079,254, The factors concerning the finances of
this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Lenoir’s business-

type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Lenoir’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business—type activities as of June 30, 20121, totals $72,777,160 (net of accumulated
depreciation). (Figure 6) These assets include buildings, infrastructure, land, equipment,

plant and systems, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions:

»  Major bridge construction

Land

Buildings and improvements
Infrastmeture

Equipment

Plant and systerms
Construetion in pragress

Total

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note IIl. A. 4 and 5,
beginning on page 41 of this report.

City of Lenoir’s Capital Assets

Figure 6
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

2012 2014 2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 3,024,711 S 324701 § 239,714 % 239,714 3,364,425  § 3,364,425
7,885,810 7,384,226 - - 7,885,810 7,384,226
12,816,469 13,397,418 - - 12,816,465 13,397,418
2,772,405 3,305,885 3,607,922 3,794,352 6,380,327 1,100,237
42,035,699 36,648,913 42,035,699 36,648,913
294,436 728,665 - 5,644,204 294,436 6,372,869
$ 26,893,831 $27,940,905 §45,883,335 § 46,327,183 72,777,166 § 74,268,088

13




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2012

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2012, the City of Lenoir had total debt outstanding of
$6,818,255 in a State and Water Pollution Contro! Revolving loans, $420,000 in a
Section 108 Loan and installment purchase contracts of $9,264,431. (Figure 7)

City of Lenoir’s Outstanding Debt
Revolving Loans and Installment Purchases

Figure 7
Govermuental Business-fype
Activities Activifies Total
2082 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Section 108 Loan $ 420000 § 512,000 $ 420000 $ 512,000
Revolying Loans - - 6,818,254 3,557397 6,518,254 3,557,397
Construction Loan - . 3,644914 - 3,644,914
Tnstaltment Purchase Contracts 1,731,513 2,193,276 7,541,918 8,972,267 9,273,431 11,165,543
Total § 2151513 § 2705276 § 14360,172 § 16174578 § 16511685 § 18879854

The above debt of the City of Lenoir decreased by $2,368,169 (12.5%) during the past
fiscal year.

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, the City of Lenoir has
an “A” rating from Standard & Poor’s, dated March of 1999; an “A2” rating from
Moody’s Investors Services dated July of 1997; and an “81” council rating from the
North Carolina Municipal Couneil, Inc., dated Janvary of 1999.

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located
within that government’s boundaries less statutory deductions for bonds applicable fo
water systems. The legal debt margin for City of Lenoir is $101,711,597.

Additional information regarding the City of Lenoir’s long-term debt can be found in
note IIL B. 5 beginning on page 53 of this repott.

LEconomic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

While job losses and property values of indusirial property continued to decline in the

traditional manufacturing economy of the City, the past fiscal year provided indicators
that groundwork is being laid for a transition into a more diversified economic base.
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During fiscal year 2011-2012, the economic impact of the national recession was
mirrored in the economic health of Lenoir. The double-digit unemployment rate for the
Hickoty-Lenoir-Morganton MSA, led to less disposable income for many Lenoir
residents. Small job gains in micro business start-ups were counteracted by an equal
number of job losses due to business closures. Private investment dollars, especially in
downtown, declined from previous years as local banks were less likely to extend loans
for building renovations or property acquisition.

To continue the city’s on-going efforts in the revitalization of downtown, streetscape
project was continued during the fiscal year. The re-working of the sidewalks on Harper
Avenue and updating the quadrant next to County Courthouse has brought a new
awareness of our pleasant environment for downtown business.

The City continues to construct additional segments to our greenway, We now have
approximately 8.0 miles of paved greenway within the corporate limits. The projectisa
partnership involving the N.C. Department of Transportation, the City of Lenoir, and
Caldwell County Pathways Committee. .

Residential growth currently taking place on the northern and western portions of
Caldwell County is particularly encouraging for the future development of retail and
service businesses within the City.

Budget Highlights fox the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities: In light of the continuing local economie pressures the City
of Lenoir adopted an austere budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012. The
General Fund budget was based on less than 1.01 percent increase in total revenues and
expenditures from the prior year. No new gencral governmental fees were added.

Business-Type Activities: Again in light of economic pressures, the City of Lenoir, in
the last 3 to 4 years has seen water consumption drop with a resulting lowering of water
and sewer revenue, The Water and Sewer Fund budget was adopted with a 2.34 percent
increase in expenditures funded with a slight rate increase.

Reguests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this repost or
requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Director, City of
Lenoir, P.O. Box 958, Lenoir, N.C. 28645.




Basic Financial Statements




al USRS ST 3O Ued [RISONN LB 210 SHISWIES [EIOUEUY Sy 0] S0 ],

SPSO9LYY  §  ¥91'8S $ 605°SSL S TLIGS6E9 §  S8CPERWS § L8S0ZIBT § $1988% JOU JEI0,
1¥3°8LT TET'ES LY Pl TETI0S TV IIE S 118765471 paudssenn)
697558 $69°¢5S 69655 wawidoppaag puey
‘ poudissy
FOLLOE YL LT POL'LET Awgeg ofigng
§E1'8¢€ 3c1'sE 8CT°8E aumage 21apag
8LER1S°T TE0'S SHZ'9R S60°LTY 860°LTHT AR AIEIG Aq LONEZKEIS
paioLsyy
£r9'tE EHIFE £H9'He stuoy] predery
181°552 181°652 181°652 (eqepusdxauon]) Lmema)
ajqrpusds uoN
997°88L°98 §8LTes I81°55T'98 £O1°EZE IS S1ETHLPT 349D PoIEIRL JO 390 ‘spasse endeo w poisoay]
SIISSK JIN]
ELOYP8S1 8C0°¢ L9TT81 887°559'31 2035961 081 6897 SANNAET] [FIOF,
6EP'673°E1 65 678°CL 1E8°E0C™CL $857cTS1 294 UO UBY} 10W UT (Y
9pT'T89°T HTTI9T 12£'950°C §T6'ST9 IEaK BUC e} S8 0 angy
:suonedyqe we) Snom
0651 0651 065°1 SOTIIEADI POIEO[]
SHYITI SPFITI SHHIZ1 susodop JowoIsny)
756668 756°66¢ PISLY EYeHE S1g20aq JuomAorduug 1Sog
801°CFE go1°EYE $o1°¢He TOHRETGO UOISId]
SE0°6TY $60°679 06ETI1 SOLLES soousqy peresuedmo)
L8508 £89°08 - SONEUIRY POnISY
166509L 250°% 085001 £5'TSY L8TSEE 990°LTE sjqefed sjomoeosy
sanuqer]
B5r 119°€8 72199 9LL%E6 097 019°28 £6E 008 6P LO00I8TE S19SSE Jv30,],
060°1#9°69 c8LTTS S0e 811769 129°Cho'st YSOVLY ST sjessy [ende] ojqeoadagt
198869 198°859°¢ FIL'6ET Ly1'61¥'e 185y [ende) ojqeirdapuon
st mede)
T69'9t 6¥0'C SHOFE £79'PE s predag
889°887 90ETT ZREEH T8EE9 SOLI0YDRAT]
Z06°S6F 206°56¥ 206°C68 SB]GRAT2031 IO
900°291°1 TEO'S ) PLETOTT YTO'LES 05Eveo {15r) S1qRATI00I SUNOOYY
9L6'99T 94692 9L6°99T {101} SlqRATSORY SIXB],
1e8%sLe 178°6LE SHITL LEET PIIOLASOI - SREAMbS s pUE ySED)
089 8 061°19 § 9¢9%81 $  S6SHEYL $ LO9WEL'E  § 6366ETY g SafeAba YSED PUE 4SL))
S)ISSY
nup) Yaril pIog DAV IMALLISOD) SANTY SIPIANDY
Sunrodayg IH0wd Jo ANy Aoury 10 A1) fremiay adAy, [BUNIIADD
oL oL ssomsng
SN Jenedmo))
(v maux)
ZIOT ‘0 dumg
SIOSSV 9N JO JUIITELS

U017 YHION ITousr Jo 5D




Fas ToRwRTES SUp 30 P (R U SR SIRWRITS [FIKGUT O 03 500 AL
SHRGOLPY  §  ¥O1 8BS $_ 5055 T ELLSCEE0 & S8CHESYE 5 LYSDZIGE 8 Burpua - $19558 BN
79L6H 0 £L9'8S SHCTHL YRLIPEES TEES5LEE ESPE0°0F Fupmdag - S1985T PN
£80°LT11 (cos} $0T11 £8C°901 FET6L0'T {99a'TLe) sposee jon w afusy )
LRTHEE TL 360°19 [T LrLesTl EELTS G35PEE TL 3R] [RIURT oL
Zert 016 ZET 0l GS0'E 0L SJUBAASIATI 10 PG 1S2IANU]
(L2z'ss) {Lez'sst) - SLOTNALTSIP 1FOI]
808'6127 BO8'61T 898°61T | paog DEY WoY ity
PELOL +6L'91 ¥6L°91 5T Edes 30 S5 BO e
G675 9ET zat SZFOLT LYY 154798 SNOOTEIROSIA
0TT'6L DTI'6L CEU6L SINEL S Pl X3
S810o'1 G81'08Y"L G81°09%'1 SOXE], QSRYIUE]
850°T9 850'19 - SOXR, ANmAnOnD
865°T 865°T 268" S A THIBY 10 SidfoaTy $3010)
26689 $£6'80 39689 SIEL APIE A, IO
SETBIT £E28T SET'YTT aRmar] sdaqad
GES'0SS'E 5£5°055'C 656°085'E SoXR] 2OES
P67 8D LA TR YEPTIEY $ox¥) THRIC[EA PY
SINMIA [ISEIY
L6E 0T {(05'19) LEE59T - - - - [ $  SPOEIST §  _Izfcloe 8 S1UN JUIBOAW0D 1EI0L
L6E'SHT I6TS9T - - - SpoEosT  §  LEECi9T  § AANIE 21015 PUR |OUORY
{105"THSTL) (70185721} T75°9T6'1 {5Ec Log'et) TOTP0L % CECILST  § 9954896 3 STOLYLST & rewmiaod Apwid imel,
17590t - - 12§°920'T TS 9001 - Q00"0CS - TESTLT L LLE6EL SNIABIE SAA-SSIUAY (B0 1,
1259001 1259201 1289201 - €00°00S TES SIS TIZ6P0°L ABAYat 1DKDS PUT DIBM
BATIANSR B A-seiny
(L1 69S EL) 29519} - (555208 €T) - (SS5LOSE1) 00702 EEE1LET YZL91TL PILLEYE] FIRAUOE [EIUILIAOE U0,
{T1L6°06) (LLEDE) (LLG06) 14606 307 PUE 1530
{8ge70£51} {68E'0E6'1) (68£°0E6'T) 1LT¥98 S61T1Z §S5'96TT UONERI0AL U AWM
(LTgeis) (Les'19Y (096"151) (096°15%) LY6'0%LL 158°F S6L°LEI'T WIWLO|RA2P [FSAYd PUL S1TOBO3Y
(£98'€l) (soz'ce) (£95'cL) £8E°670 9PT'COL nopasyod [EIUITHOIALY
{osT'eee’ > {osT'eRE') (osT'E9E'T) £99° Y1 57055 LOL6T 948'L60°T vopuodsue:],
{zeseeg's) (eEsLE8'Ly (T58'LE8°00 891°'s £PO'PEL 685081 0EH'S1T'S Kpges 2130
(css'ase't)  § (065'65L' ) $ {p6s's5L1)  § SFO'BLE 3 63650 § $ESGEIE WHA0T [ERUSD
SHRIATIT CMIITIIACD)
SRTILIAYS Aot
ey vaii prEod DAY 1601, SYANSY SINTALYY STUORNALYU0]Y SUORNQLYTOY) SIHAIIG sauadxy b FUGTUNY
Jrmaoday Iour] g0 Xy DX JO AND &-ssomsng TEJUILNLIDAOL) pu SGEALY PUT FOTAS 10} 52EABYD)
el JURRILPAGS ATEWIL T endey Burresndg
spng ymuodwo)
QISY JON T SAuBY) SOTTMANY, WEIT0NG
PUR AR (p5wd ) 1IN
(g nqux)
T10T (€ dung PIPUF JEIA
SAMIANIY JO ITIENELS

TOTIOLED) [BFON ‘1007 JO 1)



City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30,2012
(Exhibit C)
Special Non Major Total
Revenue Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Assels ’
Cash and cash equivalents 4,239,989 -3 - 8 4,239,989
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 254,376 254,376
Taxes receivable (net) 266,976 266,976
Accounts recelvable (net) 624,350 . 624,350
Other receivables 400,805 92 95,005 495,902
Prepaid items 34,643 34,643
Due From Other Funds 401,943 401,943
Totel assets 5,968,706 92 § 349,381 $ 6,318,179
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounis payable 317,931 9,135 327,066
Due to other funds 86,407 315,536 401,943
Deferred revenues 268,566 268,566
Total liabilities 586,497 95,542 315,536 997,575
Fund balances:
Non Spendable
Prepaid ltems 34,643 34,643
Cemetery Care 255,181 255,181
Resiricted
Stabilization by State Statute 1,427,098 1,427,098
Federal Forfeiture 38,138 38,138
Public Safety 297,704 297,704
Assigned
Land Developnment 555,964 355,964
Unassigned” 3,028,662 (95,450} (221,336) 2,711,876
Total fund balances 5,382,209 (95,450) 33,845 5,320,604
Total liabilities and fund balances 5,968,706 92§ 349,381 S 0,318,179

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemellid




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Reconcilintion of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Fuads to the
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2012

(Exhibit C-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities {n the statement of net assets are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not finaneial resotmces and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. .

Other long-tenn assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are
deferred in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and theretore are not seported
in the funds,

Net assets of governmental activities

19

“The notes ta the finansial statennnts are an integral part of this statement.

$

3

5,320,604

26,893,831

266,976

_(3,360,824)

20,120,587




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
{Exhibit D)

Revenucy
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovermmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental révenuecs
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous
Payment from ABC Board
‘Fotal revenues

Expenditures
Current;
General Governtient
Public safety
Transportation
Environmental protection
Heonomic and physical development
Cultural and recreational
Capital projecis
Debt service:
Principal refirement
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditores

Other financing sources {uses)
Issuance of installment purchase debt
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Transfers:
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Special Non Major Total
Revenne Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
7,020,833 3 7,020,833
3,840,310 3,840,310
1,539,309 1,539,309
1,222,218 1,857,990 144,665 3,224,873
196,548 196,548
1,669,626 1,669,626
5,527 e 1,628 1,163
79,801 6,950 86,751
219,868 i i 219,868
1 5,794,040 1,857,998 153,243 17,805,281
3,001,812 3,003,812
7,793,545 8,674 1,802,219
1,364,885 1,364,885
775,384 775,384
516,392 1,671,245 2,187,637
1,816,307 207,323 2,023,630
265,098 265,008
816,763 92,000 908,763
67,404 23,567 90,971
16,152,492 2,002,809 263,008 18,420,399
{358,432) {144,811) (111,855) (615,118)
355,000 355,000
16,794 16,794
{179,866) 39,866 120,000
191,928 59,866 120,000 371,794
{166,524) (84,945) 8,145 (243,324)
3,548,133 {10,505) 25,700 3,563,928
5,382,209 § {95,450) % 33,845 % 5,320,604

The notes Lo {he financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 20




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds fo the
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Bxhibit D-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds b (243,324)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense, This is the amount by which capital outlay is less than depreciation. (1,047,074)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resourcss are not

reporied as revenues in the funds. (196,339)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the

current financial resources of governmental funds. 553,763

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of cutrent

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. _ (39,892)
Change in net assets of governmental activities 3 {972,866)

‘I'he notes to the financial statements are an integral

part of this statement. 2l




City of Lenoir, North Carcliva

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Exhibit E)

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergoverninental revenues
Restricted intergoverumnental revenues
Termits and faes
Sales und services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Payment from ABC Board
Total reveniues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General Government
Public safely
Transportation
Environmental protection
Heonomic and physical developtnent
Culiural and recreational
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Appropriated fund balance
Proceeds from disposal of capital asscts
Troceeds from instaliment purchase
Transfers out:

To Special Revenue Fund

To Capital Projects

Total other {inancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

The notes 10 ths financial statements are an inlegral
part of this siatement,

Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

7,]81,446 § 7,181,446 7,020,833 § (160,613)
3,842,447 3,842,447 3,840,310 (2,137)

1,483,430 1,483,430 1,539,309 55,879

904,813 904,813 1,222,218 317,403
231,000 231,000 196,548 (34,452}
1,616,334 1,716,334 1,669,626 (46,708)
42,200 42,200 5,527 (36,673)
109,900 254,900 79,801 {205,099)

_ 207,500 207,500 219,868 12,368
13,619,070 15,894,070 15,794,040 {100,030)

2,313,421 3,014,743 3,001,812 12,931

7,885,320 7,816,825 7,793,545 23,280

1,242,937 1,369,937 1,364,885 5,052
760,198 775,198 775,384 {186)
525,259 524,258 516,392 7,866
1,971,624 1,817,804 1,816,307 1,497
815,806 815,800 816,763 957

69,499 69,499 67,404 2,095

15,524,079 16,204,070 16,152,492 51,578
95,000 (310,060) (338,452) {18,452)
50,000 (50,000)
25,000 25,000 16,794 (8,208)
355,000 355,000 -
(59,866} (59,866)

(120,000) (120,000) (120,000} -
(95,000) 310,000 191,928 (118,072
- 8 - {166,524y % (166,524}

5,948,733
S 5382209
22




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Iunds
June 30, 2012
{Exhibit F)
Enterprise Fund
Water
and Sewer
Fund
Assets '
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,194,607
Aecounts receivable (nel) 537,624
Inventories 63,382
Resticted Cash and cash equivalents 121,445
Total current assets 3,917,058
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, nel 45,883,335
Total noncurrent assets 45,883,335
Total assets 49,800,393
Liabilities
Current Habilities
Accounis payable 325,287
Instaliment purchase contracts - curcent 1,481,829
Revolving loan payable - current 574,492
Customer deposits 121,445
Compensated absences payable 72,600
Total current liabilities 2,575,053
Noncurrent labilitics
Revolving Joan payable 6,243,762
Installment purchasc contracts payable 6,060,089
OPEB Liability 47,514
Compensated absences payable 39,390
Total noncurrent labilities 12,390,755
Total liabilities 14,965,808
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 31,523,163
Unrestricted net assets 3,311,422
‘Total net asssts 34,834,585

The notes to the financial statements are an integral
part of fhis statement.

23




City of Lencir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Exhibit G)

QOperating revenues
Water sales
Wastowater (reatment charges
Water and sewer laps
Late payment charges
Miscellaenous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Rhodhiss Watet Treatment Plant
Water disiribution
Water resources
Wastewater collection
Wastewater pretreatment
Gunpowder Wastewater Treatmeit Plant
Lower Creck Wastewater Treatment Plant
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue {expense)
Interest earned on investnents
Tnterast paid on long-lerm debt
Tolal nonopéerating revenue (expense)

Tncomte (loss) before transfers and contributions

Capital contributions

Change in nef nssets

Total net assets - beginning, as previously reported

Total net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integrel

pari of this stalement.

24

Enterprise Fund

Walter
and Sewer
Fund

4,939,165
2,380,919
27,130
228,618
49,674

7,625,506

1,287,374
1,307,854
442,126
690,365
138,344
479,131
1,120,341
1,119,345

6,634,880

990,626

3,059
(414,431)

(411,372)

579,254

300,000

1,079,254

33,755,331

34,834,583




-City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2012
{Exhibit H)

Operating activities
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for employee benefits
Customer deposits returned
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activitics

Capital and related financing activities
Net proceeds from financing
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments

Net eash provided (used) in investing activities

Net inerease in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

End of year

The notes to the financial statemenis are an integral
part of this statement. 25

Lnterprise Fand

Water
and Sewer
Fund

7,589,520
(3,061,800)
(2,430,794)

9,075

2,106,001

(3,644,914)
500,000

(675,496)
1,830,508
(414,431)

(2,404,333)

3,059

3,059

(295,273)

3,611,325

3,316,052




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Exhibit H)
_ Enterprise Fund
Water
and Sewer
Fund

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income {loss) 3 990,626
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) '
to net cash provided by {used in) operating

activities: )
Depreciation 1,119,345
Change in assets and liabilities
(Tncrease) decrease in accounts receivable and accruals (35,986)
(Increase) decrease in inventory 12,722
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
acerued liabilities (5,477)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 9,075
Increase (decrease) in compensated absence payable {6,638)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB 22,334
Total adjustrnents 1,115,375
Net cash provided by (wsed in) operating activities 3 2,106,001

The notes to the financlal statements are an integral
part of this statement. 26




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2012
(Exhibit I}
Agency
TFund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 11,108
Total assets 3 11,108
Liabilities
Due to agency 3 11,508
Total liabilities $ 11,108

The notes to the financial statements are an integral
part of this statement. 27




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS

The accounting policies of the City of Lenoir and its discretely presented component unit
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The
following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Lenoir (City) is a municipal corporation of the State
of North Carolina. It is governed by an elected board of eight consisting of a mayor and
a seven-member council, These financial statements present the City and ifs component
unit, a legally-scparate entity for which the City is financially accountable. The
discretely presented component unit below is reported in separate columns in the
financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

City of Lenoir Board of Aleoholic Control

The members of the City of Lenoir Alcoholic Control's (ABC Board) governing board
are appointed by the City. In addition, the ABC Board is required by State statute to
distribute the majority of its surpluses to the General Fund of the City. A smaller portion
of the ABC Board's surpluses ave distributed to the Caldwell County School
Administrative Unit. The ABC Board, which has a June 30 year end, is presented as a
proprietaty fund (discrete presentation). Complete financial statements for the ABC
Board may be obtained from the entity's administrative offices at City of Lenoir ABC
Board, ABC Court, Lenoir, NC 28645.

Lenoir Tourism Development Authority Board

The members of the Lenoir Tourism Development Authority’s (LTDA Board) governing
board are appointed by the City. The LTDA collects a 3% room occupancy tax from the
rental of any room, lodging or accommodation furnished by a hotel, motel, inn, tourist
camp, or similar place within the city. Complete financial statements for the LTDA
board may be obtained City Hall, City of Lenoir, 801 West Ave., NW, Lenoir, NC 28645.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government and its component unit, These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended fune 30, 2012

revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external pattics.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct and program revenues
for the different business-lype activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses arc those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program, Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenucs are
reported instead as general revenues. City of Lenoir’s policy for eliminating internal
activity in the government-wide statement of activities indicate that interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
City’s funds. Scparate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column, All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprictary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result fromn exchange
fransactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essenfially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. Itis used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes and state-shared revenues. The
primary expenditures are for public safety, streets and highways, sanitation, parks and
recreation, and general government services. The City also maintains a separate sub-fund
for the Downtown Service District for accounting purposes. This sub-fund has been
consolidated into the General Fund for reporting purposes. Debt service payments for
general long-term debt ate accounted for in the General Fund. .

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted
to expenditures for specified purposes. The City has ten Special Revenue Fund projects
including the Governor’s Highway Safety Grant, E-911; Federal Energy Grant; Fit

29




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Community Grant; PARTF Grant, 2009, 2010 and 2011 Community Development
Entitlement Grants; and 2009, 2010 and 2011 Unifour HOME Consortium Grants.

The City Repotts the following nonmajor governmental funds:
Capital Project Fund

The Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds). The City has three projects within the Capital Project Fund: the
Fairview Strect Bridge, Downtown Streetscape, and Greenway.

Permanent Fund

The Permanent Fund accounts for the Perpetual Care Fund. The interest earned on the
nonexpendable invested principal is used for the ongoing maintenance of the City’s
cemetery.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues carned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability,
or other purposes. Water and sewer capital projects are included in the Water and Sewet
Capital Project Fund.

The City tepotts the following fund type:

Agency Fund — Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the
measurement of operating results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the City
holds on behalf of others. The City maintains the following agency fund: CheckFree Pay
which accounts for collection of payments of AT&T and Piedmont Natural Gas
customers and flex spending, We excluded these activities from the City’s government-
wide financial statement because the city cannot use these assets to finance its operation.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — In accordance with North Carolina

General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year using the modified
accrual basis of accounting,
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Goverrnment-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The
government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the propriotary fund
financial statements. The City’s one fiduciary fund (an agency fund) has no
measurement focus and is excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions,
in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include property faxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Governmental Fund Financial Statements.
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under this method, revenues are recoghized
when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund lability-
is incwrred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures in
governmental funds, Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-
end, except for property taxes, Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue
because the amount is not susceplible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the current year. Also, as of Jamuary 1, 1993, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor
vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Caldwell County is
responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on
behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of
Tenoir and its special downtown district known as Main Street Lenoir. For motor
vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first day of the
fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal
year in which they become due, Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered
in Caldwell County from March 2011 through February 2012 apply to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown
as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the city are
recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
Grant revenues, which are unearned at year-end, are recorded as unearned revenues.

Under terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of

specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by
general revenues.

As permitted by generally accopted accounting principles, the City has elected to apply
only applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989 that do nol contradict GASB pronouncements in ifs accounting and reporting
practices for its governmental activities, business-type activities and proprietary
operations.

D. Budgetary Data - As required by the N. C. Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act (G.S. 159), the governing board must adopt by July 1 an annual balanced
budget ordinance for all governmental and proprietary funds except for those funds,
which operate under project ordinances. The City has adopted project ordinances for the
Capital Projects and Special Revenue Funds. The annual budget is prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting to be compatible with the accounting system in
recording transactions, as required by G.8. 159-26(c).

Appropriations are made at the departmental level and are amended as necessary by the
governing hoard. All appropriations (other than funds with multi-year budgets) lapse at
year-end. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level
for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for project ordinances. The City
Manager is anthorized to transfer approptiations within a department; however, any
revisions that alter total expenditures of any deparfment must be approved by the
governing board. The amended budget ordinance as of June 30, 2011, is included in the
financial statements but has been restructured to conform to the actual data, The City's
governing board enacted supplemental budget ordinances during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. The ordinances increased appropriations by $680,000 in the City’s
General Fund and $0 in the City's Water and Sewer Fund.

As tequired by G.S. 159-26(d), the City maintains encumbrance accounts, which are
considered to be "budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent
the estimated amounts of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in
process at year-end arc completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities and are either charged to an appropriation in the
following year or the contractual commitment is cancelled.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1. Deposifs and Investments - All deposits of the City, LTDA and the ABC Board are
made in board-designated official depositories and are collateralized as required by G.S.
159-31, Official depositories may be established with any bank or savings and loan
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City, LTDA and ABC
Board may establish time deposit accounts in the form of NOW accounts, SuperNOW,
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. State law, G.S. 159-30(c) authorizes
the City and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the
State of Noith Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or
public authority; obligations of certain nonguaranteed federal agencies; cerfain high
quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina
Capital Management Trust (INCCMT); a SEC-registered mutual fund,

The City, LTDA and the ABC Board’s investments with a matwity of more than one
year al acquisition and non-money market investments are carried at fair value as
determined by quoted market prices. The NCCMT Cash Portfolio's securitics are valued
at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's
securities are valued at fair value. Money market investments that have a remaining
matutity at the time of purchase of one year or less and non-participating interest earings
and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost.

Tn accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable
and which provide for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until
maturity, These investments are stated at cost in the City's financial statements.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents - The City pools money from several funds to facilitate
disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash
and investments arc essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash
equivalents. The City, LTDA and the ABC Board consider all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash and cash equivalents.

2a. Restricted Assets — Permanent Pund restricted cash of $254,376 represeats the
nonexpendable portion of the cemetery funds. Custorer deposits of $121,445 are also
shown as restricted cash.

3, Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable - According to the North Carolina General Statutes,
ad valorem taxes levied on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year, are due September 1
but penalties do not accrue until the following January 6 when taxes are considered past
due and the property is subject to lien. The taxes levied are based on the assessed values
as of January 1, 2011. As allowed by State law, the City has established a schedule of
discounts that apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due date. In the City's General
Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

4. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - All receivables that historically experience
uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, This amount
is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior
years.
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City of Lenoir, Notth Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

5. Inventories - Inventories of the City and ABC Board are maintained for all enterprise
fund supplies. They are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.

6. Capital Assets — Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $1,000. The City and the ABC Board’s capital assets are
recorded at historical cost when purchased or fair market value at the time of donation.
Certain iteins acquired in earlier years are recorded at estimated historical cost. General
infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002, consist of the road, bridges and
drainage networks that were acquired or that received substantial improvements
subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are reported at e¢stimated historical costs, The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The City's capital assets are being depreciated on a  straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives

Infrastructure 15-50
Buildings 45 - 50
Plant and systems 45 - 50
Improvements 15-20
Vehicles 6-8

Furniture and equipment 10-15
Computer equipment 5-10

Capital assets of the ABC Board arc depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line
basis as follows:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Land, improvements and buildings 8-40
Store equipment 2-20
Office equipment 5-10
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

7. Long-Term Obligations — In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-texm debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, arc deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method.
Bonds payable, if any, are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount.
Rond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

8. Compensated Absences - The vacation policies of the City and the ABC Board
provide for the accumulation of up to thiity (30) days earned vacation leave with such
leave being fully vested when eatned. For the City’s government-wide and proprietary
funds and the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is carned. The City has assumed a last-
in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that
is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in
the government-wide financial statements.

Both the City and the ABC Board's sick leave policies provide for an unlimited
accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave
accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of
service for retirement benefit purposes. Since neither the City nor the ABC Board has
any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick
leave has been made.

9. Net Assets/Fund Balance — Net assets in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt;
restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that
are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)] restricts appropriation of fund balance or fund equity to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities,
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as these amounts stand at
the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.
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The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact.

Prepaid Items — Portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents services rendered for the subsequent years, which are not spendable resources,

Perpetual Maintenance — Cemetery resources that are required to be retained in

perpetuity for maintenance of the City of Lenoir Cemeteries.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that are restricted to
specific purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statue - Represents the amount of revenue
recognized, but not available for appropriation. This amount is usually comprised of
receivables, not offset by deferred revenues, and due from other funds.

Restricted for Federal Forfeiture - Portion of fund balance that is available for
appropriation but legally segregated for qualifying law enforcement expenditures.

Restricted for Public Safety — Portion of fund balance that is available for
appropriation but legally segregated for qualifying public safety expenditures.

Assiened Fund Balanee - Portion of fund balance that City of Lenoir intends to use for
specific purposes.

Assigned for Land Development — Portion of fund balance set aside for land
developent,

Unassisned Fund Balance - Portion of fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, of assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

For purposes of fund balance classifications, funds are to be spent from restricted fund
balance first followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and last
unassigned fund bafance.

T. Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
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disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

G. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

1. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the government-wide statement of net assets — The governmental fund balance
sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and
net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
net assets. The net adjustment of $23,799,983 consists of several elements as
follows:

Description "~ Amount

‘Capital assets in g_oiétnmnental activities are not financial
resources and are therefore not reported in the funds (total |
capital assets on government-wide statement governmental

-activities colamn) o o $ ;71,73'7.,6;74
Less hccuinulated déi)lweciatioi1 - (44,8553,843)
Net cagifal ésséts__ P _ 26,893,831

Llabﬂmes for re_véﬁ_ﬁe deferred but earned and ﬁwg_e_ﬁpre o
‘recorded in the fund statements but not government-wide C 266,976

tiabijitigg that, beqaqs'é‘ they are not due and }g_éj!able in

:._ﬂlge cutrent period, do not require current resources to pay

and are therefore not recorded in the find statements: 1.
. Leases and installment finanoing S (2,151,513):

Cblji_)pexlsated absences _ : (517,705):
_Pension obligation - ' {691,606}
Total adjustment o - $ 23,799,983 -
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2. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide
statement of activities — The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditutes,
and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between nel changes in fund
balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental
activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. There are
several elements of that total adjustment of $(729,542) as follows:

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements
but capitalized as assefs in the statement of activities 3 761,597

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over
their useful lives, is recorded in the statement of activities,
but not in {he fund statements (1,808,671)

New debt issued during the year 18 recorded as a source of

funds in the fund statements; it has no effect on the

statement of activities - it affects only the government-wide

statement of net assefs (355,000)

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of
funds in the fund statements but again affect only the
statement of net assets in the government-wide statements 908,763

Law Enforcement Separation Allowance expenses reported

in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

resources {o pay and are not recorded as expenditures in the

fund statements (11,072)

OPEB expenses reported in the statement of activities do not (5,797)
require the use of current resources to pay and are not recorded
ag expenditures in the fund statements

Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide
statements but not in the fund statements because they do not
use current resources - {23,023

Revenues teported in the statement of activities that do not provide
current respurces are not recotded as revenues in the find

statements:
Recording of tax receipts deferred in the find statements (196,339)
Total adjusiment $ (729,542
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II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE and ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Excess of Expenditurcs over Appropriations - For the year ended June 30,
2010, no expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts at the department level.

Fund/Department Excess Fund/Department Excess
General Fund: Enterprise Fund
Administration $219 Rhodhiss Water Plant $47,214
Sanitation 186 Water Distribution 1,303
Transfer Out 59,866 Wastewater Pretreat 5,363
$60,271 £53,980

These over-expenditures were immaterial and approved by the Board subsequent
to year-end. The city annually files a corrective action plan. It is the city’s
intention to amend their budget on a more timely basis in the foture.

B. The Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project Fund had fund balance deficit of

$95.450 and $221,336 respectively. The General Fund will fund the deficit in future
yeats.

I1I. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A, Assets

1. Deposits - All of the City's, LTDA’s and ABC Board's deposits are cither insured or
collateralized by using one of two options. Under the Dedicated Methed, all deposits that
exceed the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with securities held
by the City's or ABC Board's agent in the units' name. Under the Pooling Method, a
collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer's agents in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting
in a fiduciary capacity for the City, LTDA and the ABC Board, these deposits are
considered to be held by the City's and the ABC Board's agents in their names. The
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-
interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits.

Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their
pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this
information with the unit or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the
exact amounts of collatera! pledged for the City, LTDA or the ABC Board under the
Pooling Method, the potential exisis for undercollateralization, and this risk may increase
in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces
strict standards of financial stability for each Pooling Method depository. The City,
LTDA and ABC Board have no policy regarding outstanding risk for deposits.
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At year-end, the City's deposits, including fiduciary funds, had a carrying amount of
$2,801,062 and a bank balance of $3,080,670, Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was
covered by federal depository insurance with the remainder held in Pooling Method
depositories as discussed above.

At year-end, the ABC Board's deposits had a carrying amount of $184,636 and a bank
balance of $206,258. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.

At year-end, the LTIDA’s deposits had a carrying amount of $61,190 and a bank balance
of $61,190. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.

2. Investments - General Statute 159-30(c) authorizes the City and the ABC Board fo
invest in obligations of the U, S. Treasury; obligations of any agency of the United States
of America, provided the payment of interest and principal of such obligation is fully
guaranteed by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and
notes of any North Carolina government or public authority; obligations of certain non-
guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances; and The North Carolina Capital Management Trust, an SEC-registered
mutual fund. The City pools monies from several funds to facilitate disbursement and
investment and maximize investment income. The City and ABC Board have no policy
regarding credit risk for investments.

The City held no investments that were categorized by level or risk at year-end. All
invested funds were with The North Carolina Capital Management Trust, which is
exempt from risk categorization because the City does not own any identifiable
securifies, but is a shareholder of a percentage of the fund. As of June 30, 2012, the
credit rating of the fund was AAAm by Standard and Poor’s, with a weighted average
maturity of 51 days. Total investments are as follows:

Carrying Fair
Value Value
North Carolina
Capital Management Trust $ 5018478 $ 5018478

3. Receivables - Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - The amounts shown in the
Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets are net of the following allowances for
doubtful accounts:
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General Fund:

Allowance for Uncollectible
Property Taxes Receivable
Allowance for Miscellaneous
General Fund Receivables

Subtotal '
Water and Sewer Fund:
Allowance for Uncollectible
Water and Sewer Receivables

Total

4. General Capital Assets

$ 676,384
27,035
703,419
200,000

5 903419

The capital asset aclivity for the governmental activities as of June 30, 2012 was as

follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activites:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 5 3,124,711 $ 3,124,711
Constraction work in progress 728,665 361,072 {795,301) 294,436
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,853,376 361,072 (795,301 3,419,147
Capital assets being depreciated;
Buildings and improvements 13,944,572 795,301 14,739,873
Inffastructure 43,122,548 43,122,548
Equipment 12,140,354 400,525 (226,102) 12,314,777
Total capital assets being depreciated 69,207 474 1,195,826 (226,102) 70,177,198
Less accurnulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 6,560,346 293,717 6,854,063
Infrastructure 29,725,130 580,949 30,306,079
Equipment 3,834,469 934,005 (226,102) 9,542,372
Totat accumulated depreciation 45,119,045 & 1,808,671 § (226,102) 46,702,514
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 24,087,529 23,474,684
Total capital assets - governmental activities $§ 27,940,905 $ 26,893,831
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Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Govermment
Public Safety
Transportation
Environmental Protection

Bconomic and Physical Development

Cultural and Recreational

Total Depreciation Expense

5. Business-Type Capital Assets

$204,051

586,943

734,431

87,862
10,161
185223

$1,808,671

The capital asset activity for the business-type activities at June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Rusiness-type activities {Water and Sewer Fund)
Capital assets not belng depreciated:
Land $ 239,714 ) 239,714
Construction work in progress 5,644,204 678,012 (6,322,216) -
Tolal capital assets not being depreciated 5,883,918 678,012 {6,322,216) 239,714
Capital assets being depreciated: ' ]
Plant and systems 54,894,166 6,319,701 61,213,867
Equipment 6,433,424 6,433,424
Total ¢apital assets being depreciated 61,327,590 0,319,701 - 67,647,291
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant and systems 18,245,253 932,915 19,178,108
Equipment 2,639,072 186,430 2,823,502
Total accunwilated depreciation 20,884,325 § 1,119,345 - 22,003,670
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 40,443,265 45,643,621
Total capital assets - business type '
aclivites (Water and Sewer Fund) $ 46,327,183 $ 45,883,335

6. Construction Commitments — The City of Lenoir has no active construction

projects as of June 30, 2012,
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7. Component Unit Capital Assets

The capital assets of the ABC Board at June 30, 2012, are composed of the following:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases  Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 155,849 $ 155,849
Total capital assets not being depreciated 155,849 - - 155,849
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buiidings and improvements 561,571 2,045 563,616
Store cquipment 159,643 9,041 168,634
Oftice equipment 49,272 49272
‘Total capital assets being depreciated 739,496 11,086 - 781,572
Less accumulated depreciation for: '
Buildings and improvements 263,271 15,546 278,817
Store equipment 89,132 18,915 108,047
Office equipment 23,920 3,851 27,71
Total agcurnulated depreciation 319,249 § 38312 § - 414,635
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 420,247 366,937
Total capital assets $ 576,006 $ 522,786

B. Liabilities
1. Pension Plan Obligations
a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement Systen:

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoir contributes to the statewide IL.ocal
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members
and beneficiarics. Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The
Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.
The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for LGERS, That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699.

2. Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their
annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially

43




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

determined rate. For the City, the current rate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 13.42% and 13.45%,
respectively, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
members and of the City of Lenoir are established and may be amended by the
North Carolina General Assembly. The City's contributions to LGERS for the
years ended June 30, 2010, 2011, and 2012 were $982,338, $1,006,031 and
$1,164,712 respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required
contributions for each year,

h. Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoir administers a public employee
retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"), a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified swotn
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of
the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to
the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not
subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized
by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General

Assembly.

All full-time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation
Allowance. At December 31, 2011, the Separation Allowance's membership

consisted of:
Retirees currently receiving benefits 5
Terminated employees eutitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 33

Total 60

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a
pay- as-you-go basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund,
which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value Investments. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they conte due.
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3. Contributions. The City is required by Article 12D of G. 8. Chapter 143 to provide
these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-
you-go basts through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget.
The City's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly. There  were no contributions made
by employees. The annual required contribution for the current year was
determined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation using the
projected unit oredit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
5.00% investment rate of return, compounded annually, {net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of from 4.25% to 7.85% per year of
which 3.00% is assumed due to inflation and the balance to merit or seniority.
The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. The City of
Lenoir has chosen not to set aside fimds to pay benefits and administration costs.
These expenditures are paid as they come due.

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The City's annual pension cost
and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year are as

follows:

Annual required contribution $89,673
Interest on net pension obligation 16,605
Adjustment to annual
required

pension contribution (19,811)
Annual pension
cost $86,467
Employer Benefits Paid 75,395
Increase(decrease) in net pension obligation $11,072
Net pension obligation beginning of

fiscal year 332,096,
Net pension obligation end of year $343,168

The following schedule contains trend information for fiscal years ending June 30, 2010,
2011 and 2012,

2010 2011 2012
Annual pension cost $ 79,384 § 89,088 % 86,467
Percentage of APC Contributed 141.64% 110.35% 87.20%
Net Pension Obligation $ 341,320 % 332,096  § 343,168
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2011 Actuarial Assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Investment Rate of Returnt 5.00%
Amortization Method Level % of pay closed Projected Salary Increase 4.25%-7.85%
Remaining Amartization 19 Years Includes Inflation at 3.00%

Asset Valuation Method ~ Market Value Cost of Living A«fj. N/A

Required supplementary information including a Schedule of Funding Progress and
Schedule of Employer Contributions is presented in the Required Supplementary
Information section immediately following these notes. A separate report is not issued.

¢. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement

1. Plan Description. The City contributes fo the Supplemental Retirement Income
Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of
State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefiis to law
enforcement officers employed by the City. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly,

2. Funding Policy. Atticle 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute
each month an amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts
contributed are vested immediately. Also, City employees may make voluntary
confributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012 were
$168,675, which consisted of $99,908 from the City and $68,767 from employees.

d. ABC Board - Local Government Employees' Retirement System

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoir ABC Board contributes to the statewide
Local Government Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina, LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Government
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, North Caroling 27699,

2. Funding Policy. Plan members are required to confribute six percent of their
annual covered salary. The ABC Board is required to contribute at an actuarially
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determined rate. The ABC Board's current rate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement is 13.12% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
members and the ABC Board are established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Board's contribution for the years ending June 30,
2010, 2011, and 2012 were $26,451, $23,443 and $22,798 respectively. The
contribution made or accrued by the ABC Board equaled the required contribution for
the period.

e. Deferred Compensation Plan - The City offers its employees a deferred
compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The
Plan is administered by Public Employees Benefit Services Securitics Corporation. The
Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan assets are not reported in the
City's financial statements.

{f. Flexible Spending Plan - The City offers its employees a flexible spending plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 125, Employees are able to
have deducted from their salaries, pre-tax, a specificd amount to be used for eligible
medical and dependent care expenses. The plan assets are held for the employees and are
reported in the City's financial statements in the governmental funds.

g, Post-retirvement Health Care Benefits - The City has adopted policies governing
posiretirement health care benefits for retirees. The subsidies vary depending upon the
years of service of the retiree. The City pays 50 percent of the health care premium for
employees who retire with 30 or more years of service with the retivee paying 50 percent.
The City pays 25 percent of the health care premium for employees who retire with 20 to
29 years of service with the retiree paying 75 percent. Employees who retire with at least
15 years of service are allowed to remain on the City's health policy and pay 100 percent
of the premium. Retirces arg allowed to have coverage for dependents and pay 100
percent of that premium. Additionally, at age 65 the retiree has the option to purchase a
Medicare supplement from the City's health care benefit provider at his expense with the
City ceasing to subsidize the premium. The City's regular health care benefit provider
underwrites the retiree’s policies.

As of June 30, 2012, there were eighteen employees who had retired with 30 years of
service who were receiving the 50 percent-premium-coverage benefit and three
employees who had retited with sufficient years of service to receive the 25 percent-
premium-coverage benefits, The City finances the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City recognized $83,539 of expenditures for
retiree health benefits or 0.96% of annual payroll. The current ARC rate is 1.27% of
annual covered payroll.
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Membership in the plan included the following at December 31, 2011, the date of the
latest actuarial valuation:

Public
General Safety
Employees Officers
Retirees receiving benefits 8 16
Active plan members 146 122
Total 154 138

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Post-employment expenditures
are made from the City’s General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they become due.

2. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City’s annual OPEDB cost
(expense) is calculated based on the amnual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s
net OPEB obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Annual Required Contribution $111,012
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 14,713
Adjustment to Annual Required 14,055
Contribution —_—
Annual OPEB Cost 111,670
Contributions Made (83,539
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 28,131
Net OPEB Liability, July 1, 2011 $367,821
Net OPEB Liability, June 30, 2012 $395,952

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation are as follows:
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Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year  Annual OPEB . Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Liability
2012 $111,670 74.8% $395,952
2011 $209,836 40.76% $367,821
2010 $79,417 125.16% $243,508
2009 $164,091 55.63% $164,091

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
not funded, The actuarial accrued liability for benefits, and thus, the unfunded
actuatial accrued liability (UAAL) was $1,126,070. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $8,754,716. Actuarial
valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual Tesults are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made abouti the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

3. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial
reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and the plan memboers) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4% investment rate
of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term
investment returns on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend
increase of 9.5 % to 5%. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
period at December 31, 2011 was 30 years, Assumed inflation rate of 3.00% was
also used.
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The following schedule contains the required supplementary information
including a Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedile of Employer
Coniributions. A separate report is not issued.

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAlL asa%
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratioc Covered Payroll
Date @ b (b-a) (a:b)  Payroll (b-a:c)
12/31/2008 $0 $1,717,145 $1,717,145 0% $8,514,138  20.25%
12/31/2011 $0 $1,126,070 $1,126,070 0% $8,754,716  12.9%
Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Conttibution Contributed
2012 $111,670 74.8%
2011 $209,836 40,76%
2010 $79,417 125,16%
2009 $164,091 55.63%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule for the year ended 2011
was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated, Additional information

as of the latest vatuation follows:
Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Refurn
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Includes Inflation at 3.00%
Medical Cost Trend Rate 9.5%— 5.0%
Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

The information presented for the years ending June 30, 2010 & 2011 was determined
by using the alternative measurement method.

2. Other Employment Benefits - The City provides death benefits to law enforcement
officers through the Death Benefit Plan for members of LGERS. The beneficiaries of those
employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the
System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at
least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are
eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to
the employee’s 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the
employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $20,000. All death benefit payments are
made from the Death Bernefit Plan, The City has no liability beyond the payment of monthly
contributions. The coniributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the
post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The City considers these
contributions to be immaterial.

3. Payables ~ Payables and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2012 were as follows af the
government-wide level:

Vendors Beneflis Total
Governmental Activities: § 327,066 $ 327,066
Business-type activities: $ 325,287 $§ 325287

4, Unearned/Deferred Revenues - The balance in deferred revenues in the fund financial
statements and unearned revenue in the government-wide financial statements at June 30,
2012 is composed of the following elements:
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Deferred Uneaqu

Taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 266,976 % -
Membership and fees paid in advance (General Fund) 1,590 1,590
Total $ 268,566 $ 1,590

5. Risk Management - The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The City participates in two self-funded risk-financing pools administered by the
North Carolina League of Municipalities. Through these pools, the City obtains general
liability and auto liability coverage of at least $2 million per occurrence, property coverage
up to the total insurance values, and worker's compensation coverage up to the statutory
limits.

The pools are reinsured through commercial companies for single occwrence claims
against general liability, auto liability and property in excess of $500,000, and $300,000
up to statutory limits for workers' compensation. The property Hability pool has an
aggregate limit for the total propeity fosses in a single year, with the reinsurance limit
based upon a percentage of the total insurance values. The City's health insurance
provides unlimited lifetime coverage for in network and $1 million for out of network.
The City does not carry flood insurance.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no
significant reduetions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years,

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the City’s employees that have access top $100 or more
at any given time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial
surety bond. The finance officer and tax collector are each individually bonded for
$100,000 each.

The Lenoir ABC Board is exposcd to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omission; injurjes to employees; and
natural disasters. The Board has property general liability; auto liability, workmen's
compensation and employees’ health coverage. The Board also has liquor legal liability
coverage. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three yeats.

6. Long-Term Obligations

a. Drinking Water Revolving Loan
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

The City of Lenoir has received a loan to replace the Whitnel Pump Station. As of June
30, 2012 the loan balance was $2,679,557 at an interest rate of 2.485% for a term of 20
years.

b. Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan

On September 30, 1998 the City of Lenoir assumed a loan offered from the Water
Pollution Conirol Revolving Loan Fund identified as Federal Project #C5370393-03

and State Project #E-SRF-T-97-0082. The project was for the upgrade and expansion of
the Lower Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant from 4,08 MGD to 6,0 MGD. As of June
30, 2012 the total loan balance was $485,984 with an interest rate of 2.6% for a term of”
fifteen (15} years.

On July 1, 1999 the City of Lenoir assumed a Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan
during the purchase of the Town of Hudson Utility System. The loan originated with the
Town of Hudson on April 1, 1996 and is identified as State Project #E-SBE-C-94-0010.
As of June 30, 2012 the total loan balance was $70,462 with an inferest rate of 5.85% for
an original term of fifteen (15) years.

¢. Drinking Water Revolving Loan

The City of Lenoir has received a loan for raw water intake improvements. As of June
30, 2012 the loan balance was $3,652,714 at an interest rate of 2.22% for a term of 20
years.

d. Installment Purchase Confracts

The City has entered into installment purchase contracts to finance the purchase of
equipment and installation/purchase of utility lines. A sunmary of installment purchase
contracts follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

DESCRIPTION COST DATE TERM RATE FREQUENCY
Water and WW plant $ 8,360,000 Refunded  17.5 years 3.20% $302,907

residuals management 12/24£2003 semi-annual

refinancing annexation tines
Water & Sewer lines -

Town of Hudson $ 1,206,484  Refunded 15 years 3.97% 867,465

1171272003 semi-annual

Utility Line Extension -

Phase I 2001 Annexation $ 3,237,053 6-27-02 15 years 4,29% $144,608 semi-annual
Utility Line Extension -

Phase I1 2001 Annexation & 2,658,000 1202102 15 years 4.09% $119,415 semi-annual
Utility Line Extension -

Phase 11T 2001 Annexation $ 1,550,000 6/19/03 15 yoars 3.91% $68,780 semi-annual
Water Lines purchased from ' non-interest

Caldwell County $ 373,490  12/13/2005 9 years bearing $37,349 annually
Rhodhiss Water Treatment Plant

renovations and utility line

construction S 2,700,600 6/302005 15 years 3.81% 392,544 semi-annual
Whiinel Pump Station $2,077,285 11172010 20 years 2.485% $219,009 semi-annual
Streetscape, Recreation, $1,410,000
& Downtown 8/26/2006 15 years 3.81% $88,634 semi-annual
Utility Line Projects 51,190,000
Capital Eqaipment $673,807  11/16/2006 7 years 3.70%  $2,740 quarterly
Capital Equipment $305,000 1171522007 4 years 3.25% $20,414 quarterly
Capital Equipment $621,653 171572009 4 years 235% $40,822 quarterly
Capital Equipment $526,000 1/6/2011 4 years 2.16% $34,404 quarterly
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The following summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt
outstanding (excluding compensated absences and the liability for the separation
allowance for law enforcement officers):

Installment Contracts

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021

Total

Section 108 Loan

2013
2014
2015
2016

Total

Revolving Loans

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-202]
2022-2026
2027-2031

Tatal

Total Debt Due

Principal Interest Principal Interest
529,925 47,403 1,481,829 272,779
362,241 33,010 [,553,749 218,284
278,353 25,133 1,468,622 160,650
131,698 19,137 862,251 F11,517

85,859 15,538 1,019,921 80,266
343,437 29,441 1,155,546 75,939
1,731,513 169,662 7,541,918 919,435
96,000 18,844 - -
102,000 13,854 - -
108,000 8,540 - -
114,000 2,901 - -
420,000 44,139 - -

- - 574,492 214,498

- - 574,492 142,956

- - 331,500 132,051

- - 331,500 124,304

- - 331,500 116,558
1,657,500 466,594

1,657,500 272,935

- - 1,359,770 83,369

- - 6,818,254 1,553,265

$ 2,151,513 § 213,801 $ 14,360,172 § 2472,700
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year-ended June

30, 2012:
Balauce Balance Portion of
July 1, June 30, Long-term
2011 Additions Payments 2012 Liabilities
Governmental activities:
Instaliment purchase contracts $ 2,193,276 § 355000 $ (816,763) $ 1,731,513 § 529,925
Compensated absences 494 682 23,023 517,705 298,000
Section 108 Loan 512,000 {(92,600) 420,000 96,000
Pension obligation 332,096 11,072 343,168 -
Post employment benefits 342,641 5,797 348,438 -
Total governmental activities § 3,874,695 § 394892 § (908,763) § 3,360,824 § 923,925
Current
Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, June 30, Long-term
2011 Additions - Payments 2012 Liabilities
Business-type activities:

Installment purchase contracls $ 8972267 $ (1,430,349) § 7,541,918 % 1,481,829
Revolving loan 3,557,397 3,652,714 (391,857) 6,818,254 574,492

Construction loan 3,644,914 7,800 (3,652,714) -
Compensated absences 118,028 (6,638) 111,390 72,000

Post employment benefits 25,180 22,334 47,514
Total business-type activities  § 16,317,786 § 3,682,848 § (5,481,558) § 14,519,076 § 2,128,321

For the governmental activities compensated absences are liguidated by the General

Fund, and for the business-type activities compensated absences are liquidated by the
Water and Sewer Fund,

At Tune 30, 2012, the City of Lenoir had a legal debt margin of $101,711,597.
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¢. Interfund Activity
1. Transfers in (out) for the year ended June 30, 2012 are summarized below:

Transfer In

Special
General Revenue Nonmajor
Fund Fund Governmental Tatal
Transfer Out
General Fund $ -3 59,866 % 120,000 § 179,866
Total fransfers out 3 - % 59,866 % 120,000 § 179,866

Transfers from the general fund to the nonmajor governmental fund were matching funds
used primarily to support the operations of the funds. One time transfer to the Special
Revenue Fund was for matching grant funds,

2. Interfiund receivables and payables at June 30, 2012 are composed as follows:

Receivables Payables
General Fund $401,943
Special Revenue Fund $ 86,407
Non-Major Governmental Funds $£315,536

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from working capital loans made
to other fund are to be reimbursed in the subsequent years.

f. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the
portion of General fund balance that is available for appropriation:

Total fund balance — General Fund $5,382,209
Less:
Prepaid Ttems 34,643
Stabilization by State Statute 1,427,098
Federal forfeiture 38,138
Public Safety 297,704
Remaining Fund Balance ~ $3,584,626
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1V, JOINT VENTURES

The City, in conjunction with the City of Morganton, County of Caldwell, and County of
Burke participates in a regional airport known as the Foothills Regional Airport Authority
(Airport Authority). The Alrport Authority was established by act of the North Carolina
General Assembly, Session Law 2000-9, House Bill 1517, and ratified June 14, 2000.
The Airport Authority is successor in interest to the former Morganton-Lenoir Airport
Authority. Each participating entity appoinis two members to the eight-member board.
The Airport Authority is a joint venture established to facilitate economic expansion
within the area and improve the quality of life for City citizens. The airport has been in
existence since 1945, The City is not responsible for financing any deficits of the Airport
Authority nor is it entitled to any surpluses. The City does not approve the budget of the
Airport Authority, The City occasionally contributes to the Airport Authority but is not
bound to do so. The City contributed $48,166 to the Airport Authority during the year
ended June 30, 2012,

The participating entities do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity
interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2011, Complete
financial statements for the Airport Authority can be obtained from the airport’s
administrative offices at P. O, Box 3448, Morganton, NC 28680.

V. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The City, in conjunction with four counties and twelve other municipalities established
the Western Piedmont Council of Governments (Council) in 1971. The participating
governments established the Council to coordinate various funding received from federal
and state agencies. Each participating govermment appoints one member to the Council's
governing board. The City paid approximately $182,606 for membership fees and
miscellaneous services to the Council during the year ended June 30, 2012,

VI. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The four-member board of the City of Lenoir Housing Authority (Housing Authority) is
appointed by the mayor of the City of Lenoir. The City is accountable for the Housing
Authority because it appoints the governing board; however, the City is not financially
accountable for the Housing Authority. The City of Lenoir is also disclosed as a related
organization in the notes to the financial statements for the Housing Authority.

VI SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

A. Tederal and State Assisted Programs - The City has received proceeds from several
federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are requited and ceriain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant.
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Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has
been made in the accompanying statements for the refund of grant money.

VIH. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through Auvgust 24, 2012, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Required Supplementary Information

This section contains the following addifional information required by
generally accepted accounting principles:  Schedule of Funding
Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance, Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance and Schedule of
Funding Progress and Ewmployer Contributions for Other Post-

Employment Benefits (OPEB).




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Required Supplementary Information
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actuarial Accrued Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability {AAL) - Unfunded Funded Year Ending of Coverad
Valuation Assets  Proj. Unif Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Val Date Payroll
Date _f(a) {b) (h-a) (alb} {(c) {{b-a}ic))
1213172011 $ - § 7465870 § 746,570 0.00% $ 2,039,207 35.61%
12/31/2010 $ - $ 805420 § 805420 0.00% % 2,151,296 37.44%
12/31/2009 $ - § 884788 § 884,789 0.00% 3$ 1,993,571 44.38%
12/31/2008 $ - § 789785 $ 769,785 0.00% % 1,998,704 38.51%
12/31/2007 $ - & 708,037 § 708,037 0.00% $ 1.955275 36.21%
12/31/2006 $ - $ 687,345 § 687,345 0.00% $ 1,917,798 35.84%
1213172005 $ - $ 875027 § 675,027 0.00% $ 1,930,693 34.96%
12/31/2004 $ - $ 674050 § 674,050 0.00% $ 1,887,699 35.71%
1213172003 $ - $ 560,999 § 560,929 0.00% § 1808177 34.88%
12{31/2002 3 - § 481,258 § 481,255 0.00% $ 1615458 29.79%
Annual
Required Percentage
Confribution Contributed
6/30/2012 $ 898673 84.08%
6/30/2011 $ 90,295 108.88%
8130/2010 $ 75825 148.28%
6/30/2009 $ 70,725 168.28%
6/30/2008 $ 68,204 129.58%
6/30/2007 $ 69,202 105.64%
6/30/2008 $ 71,731 §9.70%
6/30/2005 $ 64,728 89.02%
6/30/2004 $ 31,819 50.35%
6/30/2003 $ 8,025 11.96%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Addilional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization
Period

Asset Valuation Method

12/31/2011
Projected Unit Credit
Level percent of pay

19 Years
Market Value

closed
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Actuarial Assumptlons:
Investrent Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increase
Includes Inflation at

Cost of Living Adjustments

5.00%

4.25% - 7.85%
3.00%
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Other Post - Employment Benefits (OPEB)
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Pragress and Employer Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actuarial Accrued Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) -  Unfunded  Funded Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assets Proj. Unit Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio onh Val Date Payroll
Date (a) (b) {b-a) (alb) (c) {{h-a)lc))
1213172006  $ " 3 2,560,462 §$ 2,560,462 0.00% 3% 7,269,824 36.22%
1213172007 - $ 3,185,003 $ 3,185,003 000% $ 7,802,197 40.82%
12/31/2008 § - $ 1,717,148 § 1,717,145 0.00% $  §514,138 20.17%
1213142008  § - § 1,126,070 § 1,126,070 0.00% 3 8,754,716 12.86%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
Annual
Required Percentage
Contribution Contributed
6/30/2012 & 111,012 77.05%
6/30/2011 $ 45902 * 185.95%
6/30/2010 $ 79417 * 125.16%
6/30/2009 $ 164,091 55.63%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule for the year ended 2011 was determined as part
of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest acluarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization
Period

Asset Valuation Method

1213172011

Projected Unit Credit
L.evel percent of Pay, open

30 Years
Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Iinvestment Rate of Return
Includes Infiation at
Medical Cost Trend Rate
Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

4.00%
3.00%
9.5-56.0%

* - The information presented for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2011 was determined by using the
alternative measurement method.
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General Fund

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with
government that are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in other funds.

This fund receives ad valorem tax revenue, local option sales faxes,
federal- and state-shared revenues, licenses, permits, and fees. The
major operating activities include general government, public safety,
public works, parks and recreation, and other governmental service

Junctions.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Balance Sheets
June 30, 2012

(Schedule 1)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Taxes receivable (net)

Accounis receivable (net)

Other receivables

Prepaid items

Dug from other funds
Total assets

Liahilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenues
Total Habilities

Fund balances:
Non Spendable
Prepaid Hems
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute
Federal Forfeiture
Public Safety
Assigned
Land Development
Unassigned
Unassigned
Total fund balatices

Total liabilities and fund balances
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2012

4,239,989
266,976
624,350
400,805

34,643
401,943

5,968,706

317,931
268,566

586,497

34,643
1,427,098
38,138
997,704
555,964

1,028,662

5,382,209

5,968,706




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Seliedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budgef and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Pape 1)
2012
) VARIANCE
POSITIVE
REVENUES: BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Ad valorem taxes | B
Taxes - Net of discounts 7,089,346 6909227 % (180,119)
Penalties and interest 92,100 111,606 19,506
Total 7,181,446 7.620,833 (160,613)
Other taxes and licenses: '
Local option sales fax 3,604,947 3,550,539 (54,408)
Privilege licenses 160,000 218,235 58,235
Motor vehicle tags 71,500 68,938 (2,562)
Gross receipts on reatal vehicles 6,000 2,598 (3.402)
Totel 3,842,447 3,840,310 {2,137
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Ulilities franchise tax 1,400,000 1,460,189 60,189
Beer and wine tax 83430 75,120 {4,310y
Totz] 1,483.430 1,539,309 55,479
Restricted intergovernmental revenues:
State Street - Aid allocation 565,000 560,254 {4,746}
Contribution from Caldwell County 224,611 224,611 -
(rants 72,202 418,654 346,452
Federal forfeitures 43,000 18,659 (24,301}
Towal 904,813 1,222,218 317405
Penmits and fees: )
Public safety fees and charges 212,000 161,950 {50,610)
Public works fees 13,000 29,707 16,707
Planning departiment fees and charges 6,000 4,851 (1,149)
Total 231,000 196,548 (34,4523
Sales and services:
Bulk container service and sales 1,000 2,640 1,640
Solid waste fees 610,000 626,743 16,743
Cermnetery lots and marker sales 115,000 81,337 {33,663)
Recreation department fees-
centers and parks 89,884 83,817 (6,087
Recreation department fees-
aquatic/fitness cenfer 114,730 121,050 1,300
Concessions 7,000 7,328 328
‘Felephone collection fees 16,000 8,821 (L1771
Pire line charges 230,000 225,897 (4,103}
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Funid Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Page 2)
2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL {NEGATIVE)
REVENUES (Continued)
Sales and services (Cenlinued)
Rentals $ 27,700 13,200 {14,500}
Vehicle maintenance confracts 500,000 498,791 {1,209)
Total . 1,716,334 l,§69,626 (46,708}
Interest on investments 42,200 5,527 (36,673)
Miscellaneons;
Other 284,900 79,801 (205,099)
Tolal 284,900 79,801 (205,099
Payment from Component Unit:
City of Lenair ABC Board
Law enforcement 1,500 3,166 (4,334)
Trofit distribution 200,600 216,702 16,702
Total 207,500 219,868 12,368
Total revenues 15,894,070 15,794,040 (100,030)
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Administrative:
Salaries and wages 722,816 721,739 1,077
Personne! benefits 216,655 215,248 1,407
Professional services 50,500 117,725 (67,225)
Telephone and postage 29,500 19,489 16,011
Utilities 16,000 13,981 2,019
Travel and training 40,000 36,955 3,045
Maintenance - building and equipmeat 16,000 10,463 5,537
Advertising and printing 5000 18,593 (13,593)
Tax collection fees 15,000 13,974 1,026
Supplies 61,500 51,444 10,056
Contracted services 83,500 138,603 (55,103)
Dues and subscriptions 46,600 40,322 5,678
Insurunce and bonds 31,508 41,292 (9,784)
Contribution to Foothills Regionat
Adirport 42,320 48,166 {5,846)
Economic development 252,000 234,990 17,010
Capital improvements and equipment 25,000 16,285 8,715
Other cperating expenses 90,318 43,897 46,421
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund (295,336) {134,666) 39,330
Total Administrative ,448,281 1,448,500 {219)
Building Maintenance:
Salaries and wages 143,302 169,873 {26,577y
Personnel benefits 48,647 66,385 2,062
Telephone and postage 2,000 2,180 {180}
Travel ard training 300 875 (375)
Maintenance - building and equipinent 34,000 13,166 20,834
Supplies 5,000 4,357 443
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Tund Balance - Budget and Actunl
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Page 3)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
General Government (Continued)
Building Maintenance (Continued)
Uniforms
Contracted services
Insurance and bonds
Other operating expenses
Reimbursement of adiministrative
costs for Water Fund
Total Building Maintenance

Engineering:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Telephone and poslage
Utilities
Maintenance - building and equipment
Travel and training
Supplies
Uriforims
Contracted services
Dues and subscriptions
Insurance and bonds
Other operating expenses
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund
Total Bngineering

‘Cemetery:
Salarizs and wages
Personnel benefits
Telephone and postage
Utilities
Maintenance - building and equipment
Supplies
Uniforms
Contracted services
Purchase for resale
Insurance and bonds
Other operating expenses

Tolal Cemetery

Vehicle Services:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits

2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
2,600 2,749 (149)
1,600 - 1,000
8,500 8,007 493
2,500 1,618 882
(10,500) (12,855) 2,355
257,549 256,561 988
108,555 108,556 n
36,643 36,321 312
5,000 4,995 5
19,200 17,987 1,213
33,500 20,467 13,033
1,500 485 1,015
2,800 4254 (1,454)
650 1,343 {693)
8,000 4,670 3,330
£,100 6654 436
16,000 15,072 928
3,500 4,981 (1,181)
(48,000) (38.218) (9.782)
188,748 181,577 7,171
26,957 27,070 (113)
10,965 11,033 (68)
1000 2,311 (1,3t1)
12,000 4,709 7,291
18,000 13,507 4,493
6,000 4,699 1,301
400 - 400
- 4,065 (4,065)
45,000 54,749 (9,749)
7,000 6,594 406
2,000 10} 1,899
129,322 128,834 484
112,345 112,411 433
49,717 52,073 (2.358)
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General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budgef and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Schedule 2, Page 4)
2012
VARIANCE
FOSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Qeneral Government (Continued)
Velicle Services (Continued)
Telephone and postage 3 2,030 3,263 (1,233)
Utilities 16,650 5,843 10,807
Maintenance - building snd equipment 46,000 33,123 12,877
Travel and training 4,000 6,268 {2,268)
Departmenial supplies 51,000 52,534 {1,534)
Uniforms 3,000 5,251 (2,251}
Contracted services 2,600 130 1,870
Capital improvemenis and equipment 355,000 359,163 (4,163)
Insurance and bonds 10,500 9,935 565
Other operating expenses 428,100 439,710 (11,610)
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund (90,000} {93,370} 3370
Total Vehicle Services 990,843 986,335 4,507
Total General Gavernment 3,004,743 3,001,812 12,931
Public Safety:

Police:

_ Balaries and wages 2,556,346 2,501,122 55,224
Personnel benefits 1,034,233 966,283 87,950
Professional services 5,000 1,275 3,725
Telephone and postage 58,630 66,733 (8,103)
Ulilities 28,600 25430 2,570
Trave] and training 27,510 37,886 (10,376)
Maintenance - building and equipment 191,298 293,03) (101,733)
Supplies 48,575 57,842 (9,267)
Uniforms 31,090 31,095 (5}
Contracted services 92,770 93,201 (431)
Insurance and bonds 164,120 173,766 (9,646)
Federal forfeitures 22,000 5,353 16,647
Police benefit 10,000 7,943 2,057
Capital improvements and equipment - 8,500 (8,500)
DARE 6,000 3,641 2,359
Explorer Post 246 2,000 1,410 580
Adopt-A-Cop 5,660 1,338 1,662
Ciher operating expenses 15,850 19,089 (3,239

Total Police 4,318,422 4,296,938 21484

Fire:

Salaries and wages 2,183,626 2,186,851 6,775
Personne! benefits 833,649 831,952 1,697
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City of Lencir, North Carclina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chianges in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Page 5)
2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Public Safety (Continued)
Fira (Continued)
Professional services $ 1,000 8 805 195
Telephene and postage 17,190 16,852 338
Utilities 36,782 36,525 257
Travet and training 19,500 12,528 6,972
Maintenance - building and equipment 175,000 232,364 (57,364}
Supplies 38,180 27,272 10,908
Uniforms 30,460 13,306 17,094
Contracted services 34,500 23,255 11,245
Dues and subseriptions 5,000 3,125 1,275
Tosurance and bonds 01,873 102,59t (1,118)
Other operating expenses 11,703 5,181 © 3,522
Totsl Fire 3,498,403 3,496,607 1,796
Total Public Safety 7,816,825 7,793,545 23,280
Transportation:
Streets:
Salaries and wages 392,800 393,545 {745}
Peesonne! benefits 150,128 146,275 3,853
Professional services 17,000 1,042 15,958
Telephone and postage 2,600 1,776 224
Ltilities 342,000 325,560 16,440
Travel and training 1,500 580 920
Maintenance - building and equipment 132,000 164,847 {32,847
Strect repairs and maintenance 248,000 231,695 16,305
Supplies 10,000 8,583 L4117
Street signs and pavement marking 63,000 75,972 {10,972}
Uniforms 6,950 4,853 2,097
Capital fprovements and equipment 1,440 {1,440)
Insurance and tonds 36,359 14,79 1,763
Reimbucsement ol adminisirative
costs for Water Fund {40,000} (32,499 {7,501)
Other operating expenses 6,000 6,420 (420)
Totul Transportaticn 1,369,937 1,364,885 5,052
Environniental Protection:
Sanitation:
Salaries and wages 318,069 311,483 6,586
Personnel benefits 130,229 125,968 4,261
Telephone and postage 500 0472 (8,972)
Travel and fraining 2,000 - 2,000
Maintenance - building and equipment 192,000 177,429 14,571
Supplies 2,500 4,862 {2,362)
Advertising and printing 1,000 2,741 (1,741}
Insurance and bonds 30,000 28,3714 1,626
Uniforms 5,000 7,299 (2,299}
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fuud Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Page 6}
2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued) '
Environmental Protection (Continued)
Sanitation (Continued)
Purchases for resals N 6,200 - 6,200
Tipping fees 63,000 66,760 (3,760)
Recycling services 22,000 27,168 (5,169)
Other operating expenses 2,700 13,828 (11,128)
Total Environmental Protection 715,198 775,384 (386)
Economic and Physical Development,
Downtowi District:
Salaries and wages 69,612 69,401 211
Personnel benefits 24,267 24,559 (292)
Professional services 2,000 18,416 (16,4t6)
Telephone and postage 3,700 2042 1,658
Travel and training 5,560 4,955 545
Maintenance - equipment and streetscape 4,000 3,145 855
Advertising and printing 5,000 6,281 (1,280)
Departmental supplics 2,500 25618 (118)
Contracted services 12,000 21,739 (9,739}
Evenis and promotions 4,500 5,094 594)
Freade incentive grants 25,000 10,175 14,825
Dues and subscriptions 2,500 1,026 1,474
Other operating expenses 18,800 2,937 15,863
Tatal Downtown District 179,379 172,388 6,991
Planning:
Salaries and wages 209,194 204,307 4 887
Personnel benefits 77,600 71,936 5,664
Profeasional services 11,208 21,943 (10,735)
Contracted services 14,960 33,435 (18475)
Telephone and postage 5,500 4,138 1,312
Travel and training 7,000 3,850 3,150
Maintenance - equipment 7,060 2,292 4,708
Adverfising and printing 4,000 1,561 2439
Supplies 9,315 6,201 3,114
Dues and subscriptions 1,500 1,251 249
Insurance and bonds 14,500 13,659 841
Building demolition 23,500 21,533 1,967
Oflser operating expenses 1,500 3119 {2,219)
Reimbursement for administrative -
costs for Water Fund (41,898) (45,871} 3,973
Tolzal Planning 344,879 344,004 875
Total Econamic and Physical
Development 524,258 516,392 7.866
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budgef and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Page 7)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Culture and Recreation;
Recreation Centers and Parks;
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Professional services
Basketball league
Sofiball & basehall leagues
Miscelianzous leagues and progrems
Harambeg Festival
Telephone and postage
Utilities
Travel and training
[nsurance and bonds
Matntenance - building end equipment
Supplies
Dues and subscriptions
Advertising and printing
Uniforms
Coniracted services
Coneessions and purchases for resale
Other operating expenses
Total Reereation Ceaters and Parks

Aquatic and Fitnass Center;
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Miscellancous leagues and programs
Telephone and postage
Utilitles
Travel and training
Maintenance - building and equipment
Supplies
Uniforms
Advertising and printing
Contracted services
Dues and Subscriptions
Coneessions and purchases for resale
Insurance and bonds
Other aperating expenses
Total Aquatic and Fitness Center

Landscaping:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Telephone and postags
Utilities
Travel and training
Maintenance - building and equipment
Supplies

2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL MNEGATIVE)
$ 449,357 472,596 (23,239)
154,523 156,686 - (2,163)
1,000 430 570
9,500, 8,185 1,315
10,000 5,170 4,830
52,826 54,836 {2,010)
5,500 9,258 242
14,032 10,650 1,342
89,000 5,352 1,648
7,800 7,518 282
34,700 40,840 {6,140}
102,500 74,765 27,735
39,420 45,303 (5,883)
250 470 (220}
5,500 6,542 (1,042)
1,812 166 1,446
24,085 33,735 (9,650)
9,000 6,505 2,195
8,565 3,763 5,202
1,023,770 1,023310 460
258,347 239,510 18,837
78,412 64,934 13,478
500 . 500
4,050 2,604 1,446
37,500 83,387 (45,887
3,076 3,638 (562}
20,500 15,438 5,062
41,026 38,322 2,704
1,238 346 892
6,342 2,565 3477
12,825 14,466 {1,641}
500 817 (3in
6,500 5,083 1,417
7,800 7,348 452
2,012 833 1,124
480,628 479,646 982
150,482 151,337 (853)
58,132 55,735 2,397
2,000 1,465 535
4,000 1,864 2,136
3,000 249 2,751
31,600 42,101 (13,101)
30,000 41,398 (11,398)
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City of Lenotr, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 2, Page 8)

EXPENDITURES {Continued)
Culture and Recreation {Continued)
Landscaping {Continued)
Uniforms
Contracted services
Capital Improvements and equipment
Insurance and bonds
Other operaling expenses
Total Landscaping

Total Culture and Recreation

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Tetal Debt Service

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER/UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES):
Appropriated furd balance
Proceeds from sale of capitnl assets
Installment purchass issuance
Transfers out:

Tao Special Revenue Fund

To Capital Projects Fund

Total other finaneing sources {uses)

REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USECS

FUND BALANCE.
Beginning of year

End of year

2012 _
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

3 3000 8 3225 & (225)
- 300 (300)

26,600 11,998 14,002

2,792 2,630 162

3,000 1,049 1,951
313,406 313,351 55
1,817,804 1,816,307 1,497
815,806 816,763 (957)

69,499 57,404 2,095

885,305 884,167 1,138
16,204,070 16,152,492 51,578
{310,000) (358,452) (48452)
50,000 (50,000}
25,000 16,794 (8,206)

155,000 355,000 .
{59,866) (59,865)
{120,000) {120,000) -
310,600 191,928 (118.072)
5 - (166,524) & (166,524)
5,548,733
S 5382200
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Special Revenue Fund

The Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

The only fund so specified by the City is the Grants Program Fund to
account for grant revenues and related expenditures. Included are the
following projects: Governor’s Highway Safety Grant; Fit Community
Grant; Federal Energy Grant; PARTF Grant; E-911; 2009, 2010 and
2011 CDBG Entitlement Programs, and 2009, 2010, and 2011 Unifour
HOME Consortium Programnis.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Balance Sheets

June 30, 2012
(Schedule 3)
2012
Assets '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 92
Total assets $ 92
Liabilities and fund balances
Liahilities;
Accounts payable 9,135
Due to other funds 86,407
Total liabilities 95,542
Fund balances:
Unassigned , (95,450)
Total fund balances (95,450)
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 92
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Rovenues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012
{Schedule 4, Page 1)

Actual
VYariance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
GOVERNOR'S HIGHWAY SATETY GRANT
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 10,000 - 3,166 3,166 {6,834}
Intercst earned on investments . - 1 1 1
Total revenues 10,000 - 3,167 3,167 (6,833)
Expenditures; '
Departimental Supplies 3,000 - 3,158 3,198 (198}
Training 3,000 - 2,337 ) 2,337 663
Capital equipment 4,000 - 3,139 3,139 861
Total expenditures © 10,000 - §,674 8,674 1,326
Expenditures (over) revenues - - (3,507 (5,507 {5,507)
E-911
Revenues:
E-911 charges 165,000 150,561 - 150,561 (9.439)
Interest earned en investments 60,680 11,001 7 13,008 (49,672)
Total revenues 220,680 161,562 7 161,569 (59,111)
Expenditures:
Deparimental supplies 5,500 18,396 - 18,395 (12,896)
Maintenance - equipment 51,688 112,242 - 112,242 (20,554)
Contracted services 123492 74,347 - 74,347 49,145
Total expenditures 220,680 204,985 - 204 935 15,693
Expenditures {over) rovenues - (43,423) 7 (43,416) (43,416}
FEDERAL ENERGY GRANT:
Revenues:
Contributions from Quiside 40,000 - 40,825 40,825 825
Intergovernmental 70,000 16,742 50,891 67,633 (2,367
Total reveaucs 114,000 16,742 91,716 108,458 (1,542}
Expenditures:
Dept Supplies 85,000 16,742 68,149 84,891 109
Contract Services 25,000 - 23,567 23,567 1,433
Total expenditures 110,000 16,742 91,716 108,458 1,542

Expenditures (over) revenues - - . - .
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compnred with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 4, Page 2)
Actoal
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year TFo Date (MNegative)
FIT COMMUNITY GRANT:
Revenues:
Intergovernmentat 65,00‘0 25,799 30,000 35,799 (9,201)
Expenditures:
Dept Suppties 125,000 61,560 62,165 123,725 1,275
Tetal expenditures 125,000 61,560 62,165 123,725 1,275
Expenditures (over) revenues (60,000) {35,761) {32,165) {67,926) (7,926)
PARTF GRANT
Revenues;
Intergovernmental 175,000 - 34,271 54,271 {120,729)
Expenditures;
Dept Supplics 100,000 - 45,075 45,075 54,925
Contract Services 50,000 - - - 50,000
Capitat Expenditures 200,000 - 100,083 100,083 99,917
Tolal expenditures 350,000 - 145,158 145,158 204,842
Expenditures (over) revenues (175,000) (90,387) (90,887) 84,113
2009 COMMUNITY DEVELOTMENT
BLOCK GRANT!:
Revenues:
Tntergovemmental [86,143 143,624 20,059 163,683 (22,460)
Expenditures:
Debt principal 117,297 84,300 - 84,300 32,997
Debt interest “ 12,938 - 12,938 (12,938)
Sidswalk Project 39,522 17,062 - 17,062 22,460
Administralion 29,324 33,324 - 33324 (4,000
Total expendiiures 186,143 147,624 - 147,624 38,519
Expenditures {over) revenues - {4,000) 20,059 16,058 16,059
2010 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenues:
Intergovemmental 131,687 54,113 95,508 149,621 17,934
Expenditures;
Debt principal 105,350 - - - 105,350
Sidewalk Project - 22,460 - 22,460 {22,460}
Administration 26,337 31,653 - 31,653 (53186)
Total expenditures 131,687 54,113 - 54,113 77,574
Expenditures {over) revenues - - 93,508 95,508 95,508
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenrues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Schedule 4, Page 3)
Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negatlve)
2011 COMMUNITY DEVELOTAENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenues:
Tntergoveramental 131,690 - 26,338 26,338 (105,352)
Expenditures:
Debt principal 105,352 - 92,000 92,000 13,352
Debt interest - - 23,567 23,567 (23,567)
Administration 26,338 - 26,338 26,338 -
Total expendiiures 131,680 - 141,905 141,905 (10,215)
Fixpenditures {over) revenues - - (115,567} (115,567} {115,567)
20309 UNIFOUR HOME CONSORTIUM:
Revenues;
Intergovernmental 1,184,021 832,020 352,000 1,184,020 [43]
Program Income 220,000 176,435 - 176,435 (43,565)
Total revenue 1,404,021 1,608,455 352,000 1,360,435 (43,566)
Expenditures:
Dovmpayment assistance 488,015 448,015 - 448,015 40,000
Program ncome 220,000 216,435 - 216,435 3,565
CHDO 177,604 177,603 - 177,603 1
Administration 118,402 118,402 - 118,402 -
Multi-family housing 400,000 48,000 352,000 404,000 -
Telal expenditures 1,404,021 1,008,455 352,600 1,360,455 43,566

Expendilures (over) revenues - . . . -
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City of Lenoir, North Cavolina

Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Schiedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Anthorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Schedule 4, Page 4}
Actual
VYariance
Praoject Prior Current Total Positive
Authqrization Years Year To Date (Negative)
2010 UNIFOUR HOME CONSORTIUAL
Revegiues:
Intergovernmentat 1,177,272 566,625 529,784 1,096,409 {80,863)
Program income 150,000 99,725 - 99,725 {50,275)
Total vevenue 1,321,272 666,350 529,784 . 1,196,134 {131,138)
Expenditures;
Downpayment assistance 478,004 476,611 5,863 482,504 {4,500)
Program Income 150,060 54,393 10,259 64,652 85,348
CHDO 176,591 - 117,728 117,728 58,863
Adminisiration 117,721 119,057 7,243 126,300 (8,573)
Muiti-family housing 404,950 - 404,950 404,950 -
Total expenditures 1,327,272 650,091 546,043 1,196,134 131,138
Expenditures (over) revenues - 16,259 (16,259) - -
2011 UNIFOUR HOME CONSORTTUM:
Reveaues: .
Intergovernmental 1,036,727 - 522,409 522,409 (514,318}
Program income . 100,000 - 132,739 132,739 32,739
Total revenue 1,136,727 - 655,148 655,148 (481,579
Expenditures:
Downpayment assistance 394,545 - 324,737 324,737 69,808
Program Tncome 100,300 - 122,239 122,239 (22,239
CHDO 155,510 . B - 155,510
Adminisiration 103,672 - 145,172 145,172 (41,500}
Multi-family housing 383,000 - 63,000 63,000 320,000
Total expenditures 1,136,727 - 655,148 655,143 481,579
Expenditures (over) revenues - - - - -
Expenditures (over) revenues - all grants $ (2350000 §  (66,925) $ {(144,811) 3 (211,736) § 23264
Other financing sourees;
Transfers to General Fund 235,000 4.8 59,866 64,014 (170,956}
Expenditures {over) revenues - all grants 3 - $ (62779 (84,945) & (147,722) § (147,721
FUND BALANCE;
Beginning of year {10,505}
Bnd of year N {95,4502
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds include the Capital Projects Fund
and the Permanent Fund,




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

{Schedule 5)
Capital Total Nonmajor
Praject Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted - 254,376 254,376
Other receivables 94,200 805 95,005
Total assets 3 94200 § 255,181 % 349,381
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Due to other funds 315,536 - 315,536
Total liabilities 315,536 - 315,536
Fund balances:
Restricted Cementary Care - 255,181 255,181
Unassigned (221,336) - (221,336)
Total fund balances (221,336) 255,181 33,845
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 094200 § 255,181 % 349,381
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Schedule 6)
Capital Total Nonmajor
Project Permanent Governmental
Fund Fuand Funds
Revenues '
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 3 144,665 § - % 144,665
Investment earnings - 1,628 1,628
Miscellaneous 6,950 - 6,950
Total revenues 1516 15_ 1,628 { 53,2_43
Expenditures
Current:
Capital projecis 265,098 “ 265,098
Total expenditures 265,098 _ - 265,098
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {113,483) 1,628 (111,855)
Other financing sources {uses)
From General Fund ) . 120,000 - 120,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 120,000 - 120,000
Net change in fund balances 6,517 1,628 8,145
Fund balance - beginning (227,853) ] 253,553 25,700
Fund balanece - ending $ (221,336) $ 255,181 % 33,845
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General Capital Project Fund

The General Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to
be used for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities

other than those financed by proprietary funds and ftrust funds.
Projects are the Fairview Street Bridge, Downtown Streetscape and

Greenway.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Capital Projeet Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Compared with Authorizations from Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 7, Page 1)
Actual
o Varfance
Project Prior Current ~ Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
STREETSCAPE PROJECT:
Revenues:
NC munioipal agreement 650,000 599,215 - 599,215 (50,785)
Contributions from Qutside Agency 23,000 25,000 800 25,800 800
Interest eamed on investments - 71,822 - 71,822 71,822
Paver revenue 44,700 148,487 6,150 154,637 109,537
Total revenue 719,700 344,524 6,950 851474 - 131,774
Expenditiures:
Engineering 81,850 134,556 - 134,536 (52,706)
Paving Harper Ave 400,600 350,210 B 350,210 49,790
Consiruction 1,484,650 1,013,921 213,532 1,227,453 257,197
Public Square 169,700 435,617 11,062 446,679 {276,979)
Contingency 45,500 - - - 45,560
Total expenditures 2,131,700 1,934,304 224,594 _ 2,138,898 22,802
Bxpenditures (over) revenues {1,462,000) (1,089,780) {217,644} {1,307,424) 134,576
GREENWAY 'ROJECT:
Revenues:
NC DOT grant 181,235 183,035 - 183,035 1,800
Clean water trust funtd grant 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 -
Contributions from Outside Agency - 14,080 . 14,080 14,080
Interest eamed on invesiments . 2,164 - 2,164 2,164
Property contribution 189,400 189,400 - 185,400 -
Total revenue 410,635 428,679 - 428,679 18,044
Expenditures:
Administrative 4,200 70,786 - 70,786 (66,586)
Property seguisition 632,492 229,885 - 229,885 402,607
Construction 544,486 856,347 4,601 860,948 {316,402)
Total expenditures 1,181,178 1,157,018 4,601 1,161,619 19,559
Bxpendifures (over) revenues (770,543) (728,339 (4.601) {732,940} 37,603
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Capital Project Fund

Supplementat Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baiance
Compared with Authorizations from Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 7, Page 2)
© Actual
Yariance
Project Prior Cusrrent Total Fosilive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
FAIRVIEW BRIDGE
Revenues:
NC Highway Grant 720,000 - 144,665 144,665 (575,335)
Expenditures:
Englneering 260,000 162,210 35,903 198,113 1,887
Construction 700,000 ‘ - 760,000
Total expenditures 900,000 162,210 35,903 198,1 }3 701,887
Expenditures (over} revenues (180,000 (162,210} 108,762 (53,448) 126,552
Expenditures (over) under revenues - all projects (2,412,543) (1,980,329} {113,483} (2,093,812) 318,731
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES):
Financing issuances 1,604,500 1,094,550 - 1,004,550 (508,950)
Transfer from General Fund 808,043 356,700 120,000 476,700 (331,343}
Total other financing sources 2,412,543 1,451,250 120,000 1,571,250 (841,293)
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 5 - (529,079) 6517 5 (522,562) §  (322,562)
Fund balance beginning of year 301,226 {227,853)
Fund balance end of year § (227.853) § (221,336)

79




Permanent Fund

The Permanent Fund accounts for Perpetual Cemetery Care.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Permatent Fund

Supplementsl Schedule of Revenues, Expenditares and Changes in

Fund Balance -Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 8)
‘2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Ravanues:
Interest earned on investments 1,628 1,628
Tola! revenues 1,628 1,628
Revenues over expehdifures 1,628 1,628
Revenues and other sources under expenditures
and ather uses 1,628 1,628
Fund Balance:
Beginning of year 253,553
End of year ¥ 255,181
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Agency Fund

The Agency Fund accounts for payments received by the City of Lenoir
and remiftted to CheckFree Pay on behalf of AT & T and Piedmont
Natural Gas and Flexcare payments.




City of Lenoir, Narth Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
{Schedule %)
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
Checliliree Pay o
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,587 § 7,158 § 7,011 § 1,734
Tatal assets $ 1,587 § 7,58 % 701 3 1,734
Liabilities
e to other funds s 1,587 % 7,158 8§ 70§ 1,734
Total liabilities 3 1,587 & 7,158 § 701§ 1,734
Flex Spending
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 19,294 ¥ 69,134 % 79,054 $ 9374
Total assets 3 19,294 ¥ 69,134 $ 79,054 §% 9,374
Yiabilities
Dus to other funds h 19,294 £ 69,134 § 79,054 & 9,374
Total Habilities $ 19,294 % 69,134 3§ 79,054 8§ 9,374
Total Al Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 20,881 % 76,292 § 86,065 S 11,108
Tatal assets S 20,881 § 76,292 3% 86,065 3 11,108
Liabilitics
Due to other funds K} 20881 3% 76,292 § 86,065 § 11,108
Total liabilities S 20,881 & 76,292 8§ 86,065 § 11,108
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Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Funds are used fo account for operafions that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises —
where the intent of the government’s council is that the costs of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the
government’s council has decided that periodic determination of net
inconte is appropriate for accountability purposes.

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the City’s water filtration and
distribution and wastewater collection and treatment operations.




City of Lenoir, Norith Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Balance Sheets
Juue 30, 2012
{Schedule 10)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounis receivable (net)
Inventories
Restricted Cash and cash cquivalents
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current Habilities
Accounts payable
Installment purchase contracts - current
Revolving loan payable - current
Customer deposits
Compensated absences payable
Tolal current lisbilities

Moncurrent liabilities
Revolving loan payable
Installiment purchase contracls payable
OPEB Liability
Compensated absences payablo
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total linbilities

Net assets

Trivested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted net assets
‘L'otal net assets

32

2012

$ 3,194,607
537,624

63,382

121,445
3,017,058

45,883,333
45,883,335

49,800,393

325,287
£,481,829
574,492
121,445
72,000
2,575,053

6,243,762
6,060,089
47,514
39,390

T 12,350,755
14,965,808

31,523,163
3,311,422
§ 34,834,585




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 11, Part I)
2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Qperating revenues:
Water sales $ 4,975,396 $ 4,939,165 $ (36,231)
Wastewater treatment charges 2,583,851 2,380,919 {202,932}
Water and sewer taps 45,000 27,130 (17,870)
Late payment/reconnect fees 227,000 228,618 1,618
Miscellansous 48,000 57,474 9474
Total operating revenues 7,879,247 7,633,306 {245,941)
Nonopetating revenues;
Interest on investments 20,000 3,004 (16,996)
TOTAL REVENUES $7,899,247 $7,636,310 {$262,937)
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City of Lenoir, North Caroliua

Euterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures - Budgef and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Schedole 11, Part I, Page 1)

2012
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES: BUDGET ACTUAL {NEGATIVE)
Rhodhiss Water Treatment Plant: ’
Salacies and wages 215,197 280,190 § {4,393)
Personnel benzfits 108,875 115,806 (6,931)
Telephone and postage 2,700 3,424 (724)
Utilities 263,000 329,139 (66,139
Travel and training 1,900 660 1,240
Maintenance:
Building and grounds 10,000 4837 5,163
Equipment 40,060 47,648 {7,648)
Motor equipment operation and mainten. 5,000 7,327 (1,327
Departmental supplies 11,000 14,952 (3,952)
Uniforms 3,000 3,316 {316)
Contracted services 126,000 134,428 (8,428)
State testing 17,000 3,207 13,793
Chemicals 215,000 179,067 35,933
insurance and bonds 22,842 22,698 144
Thility service fees 105,147 111,496 (6,349)
Miscellaneous 8,700 6,080 2,620
Total Rhodhiss Water Treatment
Plant 1,216,961 1,264.275 (47,314)
Water Distribution:
Salaries and wages 405,986 402,010 4,976
Personnel benefits 158,056 159,105 (1,049)
Professional services 55,000 46,581 3.419%
Telephons and postage 38,000 48,199 {10,199}
Utilities 55,000 33,343 21,157
Travel and training 1,500 365 1,135
Maintenance:
Equipment 7,000 17,907 {10,907)
Distribution system 47,000 21,451 25,549
Motor equipment operation and mainten 52,060 44,493 7,507
Departmental supplies 90,000 96,838 (6,839
Uniforms 4,000 2,932 1,068
Insurance and bonds 63,000 67,090 910
Contracted services 165,000 220,123 (55,123)
$ervics extensions 5,000 - 5,000
Subdivision relmbursement - 1,800 (£,800)
Miscellancous 5,500 4255 1,245
Dtility service fees 105,147 111,4%6 (6,349}
Economic developiment 50,060 16,003 13,997
Total Water Distributien 1,3]3,!39‘ 1,314,492 £1,303)
Water Resources
Salaries and wages 261,792 246,344 15,448
Personnel berefits 91,838 87,434 4,404
Professional services 40,008 59,352 (19,352)
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City of Lenoir, North Caralina

Enterprise Fund - Waler and Sewer Fund

Supplemeninl Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actoal {(Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Schedule 11, Part1, Page 2)

2012
‘ VARIANCE
POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES (Continued}) BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Water Resources {Contintied) o
Travel and training 2 2500 % 2,658 ¢ (158)
Telephone and postage 3,500 4,176 (676)
Equipment maintenance 26,000 10,849 15,151
Motor equipment operation and mainten. 14,000 17,681 {3,681}
Departmental supplies 5,000 4,200 800
Uniforms 1,200 1,650 {(450)
Contracted services 30,981 5,137 25,844
Insurance and bonds 950 895 35
Miscetlancous 3,850 1,750 2,100
Total Water Resources 481,611 442,126 39,485
Wastewater Coflection
Salaries and wages 160,064 128,999 31,065
Personnel benefits 64,803 51,191 13,612
Professional services 25,000 12,486 12,514
Telephone nnd postage 1,000 778 222
Utilities 19,500 21,753 (8,253)
Travel and falning 1,500 1,294 206
Maintenance:

Equipment 8,000 - 8,000
Sewage colleetion system 102,724 41,979 60,745
Motor equipment operation and mainten: 30,000 60,582 (30,582)
Departmentat supplies 18,000 14,885 3,HS
Uniforms 2,500 3,713 (1,213
Contracted services 30,000 181,230 (101,230}
Subdivision reimbursement 35,000 1,800 33,200
Insurance and bonds 53,809 50,883 2926
Miscellancous 25,500 1,296 24,204
Service exlensions 5,600 - 5,000
Utility service fees 105,147 111,496 (6,349

Total Wastowater Collection 737,547 650,363 47,182

Lower Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant:

Balaries and wages 283,079 280,932 2,147
Parsonne! benefits 115,695 112,202 3,403
Professional services 3,000 1,180 3,820
Telephone and postage 3,500 2,398 1,102
Utilities 300,000 347,392 {(47,392)
Travel and training 2,000 1,365 635
Maintenance:

Building and grounds 5,000 1,722 3,278
Equipment 55,000 31,510 23,450
Motor equipment operation and mainten: 11,060 17,850 (6,850)
Departmental supplies 20,000 12,702 7298
Uniforms 1,500 2,839 {1,339)
Conlracted services 7,500 85,543 (78,043)
Chemicals 180,000 73,253 106,747
Insurance and bonds 23,203 21,858 1,345
Miscellaneous 8,000 16,099 (8,099}
Unikity service fees 105,147 111,496 (6,249)

Total Lower Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant 1,125,624 1,120,341 5,283
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City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Enferprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30,2012

(Schedule 11, Past il, Page 3}

EXPENDITURES {Contintied)
Gunpowder Wastewater Treatment Plant:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Professional services
Telephons and postage
Utilities
Travel and trining
Maintenance:
Building and grounds
Equipment
Motor equipment operation and naintes
Depasimental supplies
Uniforms
Conlracted services
Chemicals
Insurance and bonds
Miscellaneous
Utility service fees
Total Gunpowder Waslewater
Treatment Plant

Wastewaler Pretreatment:

Salaries and wages

Personnel benefits

Trave] and training

Equipineni maintenance

Motor equipment cperstion and mainten
Uniforns

Supplies

Conleacted services

Miscellaneous

Total Wastewater Prefreaiment

Budgetary appropriations:
Interest paid
Debt pringipal
Total budgetary appropiiations

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2012
) VARIANCE
PFOSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
41,070  § 47070 % -
15,203 14,784 419
5,000 3,622 1,378
3,000 3,562 (562)
143,000 162,304 (19,304)
500 17 483
6,500 23 5417
47,060 32,07 14,929
5,000 15,104 {7,104)
10,000 3,533 6,467
1,600 2,076 (476
8,000 7,455 545
60,000 54,195 5,805
17,605 16,584 1,021
3,200 5173 (1,975)
105,147 111,496 (6,349}
480,825 475,131 1,694
98,613 98,613 -
38,633 16,151 482
250 40 210
1,000 - 1,000
1,800 2,621 (821
450 446 4
14,000 11,382 2,618
30,000 26,348 3,652
1,000 13,508 (12,508)
183,746 189,109 (5,363)
472,181 414,431 57,750
1,887,563 1,822,206 65,357
2,359,744 2,236,637 123,107
7899247 % 736476 8§ 162,771
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAF)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Schedule 11, Part 11T)

Recongiliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual basis:

2012
Actual
Total revenues and other financing sources on
Schedule 7, Part T, Water and Sewer § 7,636,310
Total expenditures on Schedule 7, Part 1I,
Water and Sewer 7,736,476
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses: (100,166)
Reconciling items:
Debt principal 1,822,206
_(Increase) decrease in OPEB Liability (22,334}
Capital contributions- Capital Projects 500,000
Interest earncd Capital Projects 55
{Increase) decrease in accrued vacation pay 6,638
Depreciation expense (1,119,345}
Capital Project loan proceeds (7,800)
Total reconciling items 1,179,420
Change in Net Assets (Exhibit G) 3 1,079,254
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Enterprise Capital Project Fund

The Enterprise Cuapital Project Fund accounts for financial resources
to be used for the acquisition and consfruction of major water and
sewer capital fucilities. Projects are the Bernhardt Water Treatment

Plant Renovation and Raw Water Intake,




City of Lenoir, Nortl Carolina

Water and Sewer Capital Proj ects Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Schedule 12, Page 1)

BERNHARDT PLANT RENQVATIONS:

Revenues:
Clean Water Trust Fund Grant
Interest on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Engineering
Professional services
Construciion
Cedar Rock line constrection
Armary line construction
Contingeney
Mechanical Bar Screen
Blue Ridge Forest
Purchase of land

Total expenditures

Expenditures (under) revenues

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from Water Fund
Instaliment purchase issuance

Total Other finaneing sources(uses);

Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses

RAW WATER INTAKE

Revenues:
Contributions from Quiside Sources
Grants
Interest on investments

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Engincering/surveying
Construction
Contingency

Total expenditures

Expenditures {under) revenues

Other financing sources {uses):
State Revoling Loan issuance

Revenues tnd other financing
sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing vses

Total Water and Sewer Capital
Project Fund

Total VYarlance
Project Prior Current To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative]
5 350,000 $ 350,000 s 350,000 -
- 117,300 117,300 117,360
350,000 467,300 - 467,300 117,300
362,000 241,032 241,652 120,348
6,500 1,823 1,825 4,675
870,380 528,854 528,854 341,526
153,350 123,000 123,000 30,350
56,270 57,130 57,130 (860)
101,500 - 101,500
500,000 470,206 470,206 29,794
188,000 496,740 96,730 593,470 (405,470)
900,000 906,458 906,458 (6,458)
3,138,660 2,825,865 96,730 2,922,595 215,405
(2,788,000) (2,358,565) (96,730) (2,455,293) 332,705
188,000 {188.000)
2,600,000 2,100,000 2,100,000 (500,000)
2,788,000 2,100,000 - 2,100,000 (688,000}
- (258,565) (96,730} {355,295) (355,295)
1,000,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 550,000
500,000 500,000 500,000 -
68,677 55 68,732 68,732
1,500,000 1,618,677 500,055 2,118,932 618,732
780,000 511,723 53,032 564,757 215,243
5,020,000 4,325,658 525,736 4,851,394 168,606
750,000 750,000
6,550,060 4,837,383 578,768 5416,151 1,133,849
{5,050,000) (3,218,706} (78,713) (3,297,419) 1,752,581
5.050,000 3,644,914 7.800 3,652,714 (1,397,286)
- 426,208 (76,913) 355,295 355,295
$ - % 167643 3 (167,643 8 0 0
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Additional Financial Data

This section contains the following additional financial data: Schedule
of Cash and Investment Balances, Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes
Receivable, and Analysis of Current Tax Levy.

T




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

schedule of Cash and Investment Balances
June 30, 2012
{Schedulg 13)

Cash and Investments in the form of.
Cash:

On hand

In demand deposits

In certificates of deposit

Total Cash

Investments - North Carolina Capital
Management Trust

Total Cash and Invesiments

Distribution by Funds:
Governmentzal Fund types
Enterprise Fund

Total

89

Cost Value Fair Value

$ 1,885 1,985
257,799 257,799
2,532,155 2,532,155
2,791,938 2,791,938
5,018,478 5,018,478

$ 7,810417 7,810,417
$ 4,494385 4,494 365
3,316,052 3,316,082

$ 7,810,417 7,810,417




Clty of Lenoir, North Carolina

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2012

{Schedule 14)
Uncollected Collections Uncollected

Fiscal Balance and Balance

Year 72011 Additions Gredits B/30/2012
2011-2012 8 - % 7249166 ¢ 8,764,851 $ 484,315
2010-2011 492,320 163,739 328,581
2009-2010 100,015 30,324 59,691
2008-2009 143,085 19,431 123,654
2007-2008 113,913 6,830 107,083
2006-2007 82,270 4,085 78,185
2005-2006 71727 1,854 69,873
2004-2005 34,954 358 34,596
2003-2004 40,933 170 40,763
2002-2003 34,476 a6 34,379
200%-2002 26,007 26,007 -
Total $ 1,139,699 § 7.249,186 $ 7,017,745 1,371,120

Less allowance for uncollectible
ad valorem taxes receivable:

Ad valorem and vehicle § 1,080,308
Downtown Service District 13,838 1,104,144
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net $ 266,976

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes $ 7,020,833
Discounts allowed 80,786
Prior year releases 1,726
Amounts writien off per statute of limilations 26,006
Subtotal 7,129,351
Less penalties and interest coflected 111,608
Total collections and credifs $ 7,017,745
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Analysis of Curront Tax Levy
June 30, 2012

{Schedule 15}
Total Levy
Total Property
Property Amount of Excluding Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles
QOriginal levy:
Ad Valorem 3 1,368,801,712 054 $ 7,396,928 § 7,396,929
Downtown Service District 14,793,212 0.25 36,883 36,083
Motor Vehicles:
General 93,048,428 0.54 502,451 $ 502,451
Downtewn Service Dislrict 37,188 0.25 93 3 93
Discoveries 264,427 264,427
Releases {951,717) (941,242) {10,505)
Total for year 1,477,678,540 7,249,166 6,757,127 492,039
Less unceiiecled tax at
June 30, 2011 (schedule 14) 484,315 379,235 105,080
Curent year's taxes collected 3 6,764,851 § 8,377,802 § 386,959
Percent current year collected 93.32% 94,39% 78.64%
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of
Governmental Funds
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Lenoir’s comprehensive annual Sfinancial report presents
detailed information as a contex! for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says
about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules confain information to help the reader assess the jaclors
affecting the City’s abilily fo generate ils property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City’s curvent levels of understanding debt and the City’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indictors to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over fime and with other governmenis.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City's operations and
resources fo help the reader understand how the Cily’s financial information
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City
implemented Statement 34 as of June 30, 2003; tables presenting government-wide
information include information beginning in that year.




Table 1

City of Lenoir, North Caralina
Net Assets by Gomponent,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual basls of accounting)
{unaudited)

Govenments| aclivilies
Invested In capital @ssets, net of refaed debt
Reslrictad
Unrestricted

Total governmantal activities net assels

Business-fype aclivities
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt
Restricted
Unrestricled

Total business-type activilies nief assets

Primary govemement
Invested in capltat assets, net of refated debt
Rastrictad
Unrestricted

Tola! primary governmenl net assets

Governmental gclivitles
Invesied in capital assets, nat of related debt
NonSpendable
Restricted
Assligned
Unassigned

Total govemmental aclivities net assels

Businass-type activities
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Reslricted
Unassigned

Tolal business-type aclivities net assels

Primary governimeant
Invested In capital assels, net of related dett
NenSpandable
Restricled
Assigned
Unassigned

Total primary government net assets

Fiscal Year

2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007
20,760,909 $  21,624843 § 22061411 3 22394419 § 22797645
£57,823 555,638 535,140 792,977 887,158
3,321,546 3,207,785 3,202,086 3,820,178 6,041,283
04,760,278 S 25476066 & 25798637 § 27006574 3 20,726,087
15,028,018 § 20,760,721 $ 22,091,119 S 22,490,872 §  23,447.459
7,634,607 § 1,806,445 _$ 1972867 & 4430821 § 5984846
225620156 § 22576168 § 24063988 § 26,521,803 &  20,432.305
35808007 § 42306384 § 44152530 § 44865291 § 46,245,104
657,823 555,638 535,140 703,977 887,159
10,856,443 5,104,230 5,174,953 8,250,999 12,026,139
47323193 S 48054232 § 49862629 §  53,830267 $ 69,155,402

Fiscal Year

2007-2008 2008-2008 2008-2010 201G-2011 2011-2012
22,086,647 § 24252972 $ 23,661,197 § 24687510 0§ 24742318
283,161 269,824
1,102,646 752,328 319,048 4,785,538 1,338,580
610,557 555,694
6,416,440 5,440,585 5,895,460 2,884,672 2,184,171
30505733 § 30445865 § 30196705 §  30,251438 § 29,130.507
24623904 § 46673159 § 28630531 § 30152606 § 31523163
6,086,897 § 4,853,315 $ 32082756 $ 3602725 $ 3,311,422
30710801 § 31526474 § 31838608 $ 33765331 § 34,834,865
47610841 § 50926131 5  62511,728 § 54840116 §  66,265481
283,181 289,824
1,102,646 752,328 319,048 1,785,538 1,338,680
610,557 555,694
12,503,337 10,293 880 9,204,735 8,329,412 5,505,603
61216624 § 61972339 § 62035601 § 63846764 § 63955172

Mote: The Cily of Leno'r began 1o report sccrual information when il implemented GASB Statement 34

in fiscal year 2002-2003.
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Table 2, (Page 1)

City of Lenoir, North Garolina
Changes In Net Assetls

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basls of accounting)

{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007
Expenses
Governmental actvities:

Genaral govemment 3 2067383 § 2431126 $ 2,464,320 8 2,287,280 % 2,532,093

Public safely ’ 6,339,683 7.025,752 7,476,739 7,367,978 7,671,235

Transportation : 1,771,298 1,029,235 2,004,550 1,887,133 1,877,492

Environmental profecticn 1,028,386 692,424 734,568 709,224 615,014

Economic and physical development 1,672,187 2,159,820 2,164,581 2,232,939 1,580,054

Gulture and recreation 1,266,873 1,610,844 1,545,699 1,650,517 1,836,837

Interest and fess 145,307 87,979 84,778 96,311 203,650
Total goveromental activilies expenses 14,288,007 16917,280 16,469,592 16,339,382 16,216,285
Business-type activitles: ' o )

Water and sewer 6,489,459 6,085,390 5,880,258 6,180,758 8,742,217
Total primary govemment expenses & 20777495 § 22,002670 § 22449850 § 22,512,140 § 22,958,502
Program Ravenues
Governmenial activities:

Charges for services:

General government $ 807,755 § Meo12 8 542,158 8§ 919,369 $ 300,365

Publle safety 48,425 66,927 79,986 477,680 323,431

Transportation 25,932 25,274 12,318 32,916 355,179

Environmental protection 637,031 86,438 14,958 452,279 454,131
Economlc and physical daveloprment 5575 7.412 7.648 5,625

Culture and recreation 168,804 164,448 153,557 162 563 207,022
Operating grants and contributions 2,271,344 2,737,525 2,634,568 2,958,330 3,787,830
Capital grants and contributions 1,305,050 1,532,924 391,751 £02,339

Tolal govemimental activilies program revenuss 3,966,766 5,113,086 5,178,115 5,088,513 6,230,2§7
Business-type activities: ) )

Charges for services:

Water and sewer 5,561,166 5,860,885 6,799,186 7,014,120 7,803,097
QOparating grants and contributions - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions 25000 365,400 1,580,890 1,153,302

Total business-type aclivities program revanues 5,586,166 5,860,885 7,164,586 8,692,010 8,957,389
Total pimary government program revenuas $ 6562932 3 10,973971 § 1234270t $ 13680523 §$ 15,367,688
Net (Expensa)/Revenue |

Govemmental activities S (10,321,241) & {10804,194) 3 (11,281,477) & (11,242,869 $ {9,985,988)
Business-type aclivities {903,323) (224,505) 1,184,328 2.411,252 2,215,172
Total primary government net expense $  {11,224,664) § (11,028,699 $ (10,107,149 $ (8.831.617) & (7,770,816}
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Table 2, {Page 2)

Clty of Lenoir

Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{ascrual basls of accounting)

{unaudited)

Figcal Year

2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007
@General Revenues and Othar Changes In Net Assets ' ’
Governmental aclivities:
Ad valorem faxes 3 5,877,862 $ 5,841,566 & 6,404,153 $ 7,051,605 5 6,095,180
Other taxes and ficenses 2,381,079 2,648,948 2,844,646 2,932,602 3,249,329
Upresticted Intergovernmental 1,255,464 1,230,037 1,272,757 1,165,617 1,244,682
Miscallangous 82,511 836,368 792,211 837,805 765,656
Gain {loss) on sale of fixed assels 36,980 112,461 51,084
Transfers 482,737 582,020 {88,371} - -
Payment from ABG Board 215,711 228,608 218,371 207,863 164,229
Interest eamed on investments 57,725 45,437 53,823 146,230 284,435
Total governmental activities 10,394,079 11,621,284 11,612,051 12,452,806 ) 12,703,611
Buglness-ype activiles: ) ’
Miscellaneous 159, TA7 150,274 151,235 274,573 37,690
Gazin (loss) on sala of fixed assels {91,479) - o - -
Transfers (482,737} (582,020} 86,371 - -
Interest earned on investments §9,079 49,165 85,885 172,082 257,750
Total business-typa activities {325,320) {382,581) 303,499 446,455 295,440
Total primary government 3 10,!568,689 3 11,139,405 $ 11915542 $§ 12,899,261 $ 12,998,951
Changes in Net Asscts
Governmental activities 3 72838 % 717,780 3 320674 8 1,209,937 § 2,717,523
Businass-type activities {1,228,713) (607,088} 1,487,819 2,857,707 2,510,612
Total primary government % 1,155,875) $ 110,704 $ 1,608,393 % 4,067,644 5 5,228,135

Note: The Cily of Lenoir began to report accrual information when it Implemented GASBE Staterment 34
In fiscal year 20022003,
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Table 2, (Pags 3)

Cilty of Lenolr, North Carolina
Changes in Net Assets

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual basis of accounting)

{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2007-2008 2008-2G609 2609-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012
Expenses
Govemmenial activities:

General government ' ] 2,842,285 § 3147449 % 2688903 % 2621169 & 3,195,538

Public safety 7,782,866 8,462,402 8,474,676 8,603,721 £,215,430

Transportation 1,964,505 2,278,315 2,128,696 2,131,705 2,007,876

Environmetal protecton 745,097 754,872 772,091 B29,289 703,246

Economic and physica! development 1,820,170 1,453,317 1.955,880 1,683,730 2,187,798

Culture and recreation 1,809,285 2,234.821 2,025 347 2,051,873 7.196,856

Interest and fees 186,802 158,792 124,370 106,965 90,971
Total governmenta! aclivities expenses 47,264,110 18,489,968 18,160,843 17,934,622 18,697,714
Business-type activities:

Water and sewer 6,740,901 6,790,236 7.012770 | 6,748,649 7,049,311
Tota) primary government expenses $ 23992011 § 25,280,204 & 25182613 $§ 24,683,171 £ 26,747,025
Program Revenues '

Governmental activities:

Chargas for services:

Generzal government % 273,237 % 498,529 § 664933 3% 777,046 s 1,055,899

Public safety 339,085 154,214 198,711 194,263 180,689

Transporation 466,486 - 19,928 21,181 29,707

Environmental protection 516,359 525142 562,743 656,164 629,383
Econcmic and physical development 276,584 210,111 238,413 108,171 4,851

Cultare and recreation 161,973 225,302 253,693 216,881 212,195
Operating grants and contributions 2,258,081 1,831,041 2,227,212 2,006,622 2,871,333
Capital grants and contributions 394,448 800,431 752,228 868,037 . 202,102

Total governmental zclivities program revenuss 4,675,263 4,241,870 4,915,860 4,747,345 5,190,169
Business-type activities: ’ :

Charges for services:

Water and sewer 7.474,691 7,472,724 7,220,490 7,241,793 7,575,832
Operating grants and contributions - - - 1,374,704 -
Capftal grants and conldbutions 12,979 - - - 500,000

Total busingss-type activilles program ravenues 7,487,670 7,472,724 7,220,490 8,616,497 8,075,832
Total primary government program revenuss % 12,162,933 8 11,714,594 § 12136350 3§ 13,363,842 13,265,991

Met (Expense)Revenue

Govarnmental activitles $  (12,575847) $ {14,248,098) § (1 3253983) $ {13,187477) & {13,507,564)
Business-typs aclivities 746,769 582,488 207,720 1,867,848 4,026,621

Total primary government net expense S (11.829.078) $§ (13666610) § (13,046263) $ (11,318329) &  (12,481,034)
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Table 2, {Page 4)

City of Lenolr

Changes In Net Assels
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{acerual basls of accounting)
(unaudited)

Goneral Revenues and Other Changes In Net Assets

Gavernmentat aclivities:
Ad valorem taxes
Cther {axes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Gain {loss) on sals of fixed assets

Payment from ABC Board

Interest earned on investments
Total gavernmentsal aclivities
Business-type activitias:

Miscelanecus

interest earnsd on [nvesiments
Tolal business-type activiies
Total pimary govemment
Changes in Net Assets
Govermnmental aclivities
Buslnass-lype activities
Total primary government

Fiscal Year

2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012
§ 7427624 §  BO7BH7T2 § 7208822 $  7,370866 § 6824404
3,964,985 3,717,662 3,470,522 3,762,006 3,840,310
1,424,792 1,517,749 1,464,036 1,524,091 1,639,300
384,877 435,693 598,675 229 488 86,751
12,225 25,862 29,815 15,784
152,732 292,227 216,980 207,532 218,868
286,351 422,035 18,273 10,351 7,163
13,355,483 14,188,230 13,004,623 13,104,334 12,534,589
295,403 55,100 94,046 44,429 48,674
236,414 77,985 9,656 4,248 3,069
531,817 433,005 104,612 48,677 52,733

5 13887300 S 14,321,325 § 13109435 § 13453011 S 12587422
$ 779,656 $ (50.868) § (249,160) § (82,843) & (072,866)
1,278,588 815,563 512,332 1,018,525 1,079,254

§ 2058222 § 765,715 § §3i72 $ 1833882 $ 106,388

Note: The Clty of Lenolr began to report accnal information when it implemented GASE Statement 34

in fiscal year 2002-2003.
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Table 3

GHy of Lenolr, North Carollna

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
{ ast Ten Fiscal Years

(madifioy acoryal basls of acceuntng)
{unaudited)

General Fund

Reserved

Unrasarved

Deslgnaled for subsequent year's expentilures
Tolal genaersl fund

Al Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Urfeserved, reported ha
Special rovenus funds
Capital project funds
Permanent furd
Total all olher govemnmental funds

General Fund
HonSpendabla
Restricled
Assigred
Unassigned

Totat general fund

All Other Goveramental Funds
NenSpendable
Restricted
Unassignad

otal gl oiher governmental funds

] Fiscal Year
2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 2006-2006 2006-2007
1478239 § 15673928 § 1769710 § 2120508 3414001
2,163,738 1,707,042 2,024,085 2285977 3,189,154
419,785 470,000 - _ - _
4065742 5§ 8840471 S 3704875 5 4403466 5,602,192
- 8 7003 5 3 s 20,007
181,676 217,020 52,022 401,225 695,086
774,128 263,170 278,368 287,821 230,643
455752 5 17,493 8 428381 3 779,053 925,629
Fiscal Year
2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 20112012
5 20,608 34,643
4,525,760 2,498,565 2,116,002 2,012,161 1,762,240
610,557 556,964
3,318,160 3,653,831 3,760,253 2,896,417 3,028,862
6844860 §  G,A52396 $ 5876235 § 5,548,733 5382209
240,783 $ 248,177 § 251,441 § 253,653 255,181
952,521 520,420 187,512
_ (238,358} (316,788)
1,193,304 § 768507 $ 438,953 3 15,195 (61,605)
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Table 4, (Page 1)

City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Changes In Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{modif.ed actrual basts of accounting)

{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2002-2003 20032004 2004-2006 20052008 2006-2067
Revanues ’
Ad valorem taxes $ 5818010 § 5805658 % 5352006 & 7054808 % 7,021,048
Ofhar laxes and ficenses 2331079 2,648,948 2,844,646 2,892,602 3,249,929
Unresifsted intergovesnmental ravenues 1,255,484 1,238,037 1,272,757 1165617 1,244,682
Restricied tergovemmental revenues 2,271,344 2,137,528 2,737,488 3,263,485 3,090,162
Pefeails and fess 83,600 1,434,444 168,763 138,040 §36,612
Seies and sarvices 1,611,522 941,117 941,870 1,500,588 1,501,516
Investment eamings 57,725 45,437 §3.822 148,220 284,435
hfisceltaneous 82611 836,383 2122218 1,027,205 2,285,656
Payment (ror ABG Board 210,711 228808 218,371 207,863 164,224
Tolal ravanues 13,881,276 15,997; 143 14,711,928 17,493,438 18,859,718
Expenditures
General govemment 1,824,162 2,363,329 2,324,388 2471212 3,648,958
Public safely 5931083 6,673,544 7,153,289 7,036,070 7,288,312
Tranapcriation 1,032,493 1,226,625 1,198.540 1,176,854 1,002,932
Environmental prolection 237,413 528,934 675,569 £53,224 568,268
Econonti 2nd physical developrment 1,663,931 2,153,791 2,152,590 2,355,638 1,690,722
Cu'turel and recreation 1,135,762 1,483,965 1,411,359 1,507,834 1,875,889
Capital si'ay 1,331,185 2,335,600 2,462,304 3,215,477 930,685
Dsht service:
Interesi 124,842 87,830 94,775 04,281 203,560
Principal 782,404 687,071 601,831 717,440 837,637
Tolal expenditures 14,763,376 17,631,763 15,071,626 19,036,039 17,808,761
Exgess of reventes over {Under) expendduras (882,100) (1,634,650) (1;359& i (1,642.601) 1,152,955
Othsr Flnanting Sources {Usos)
Procacds from Installmen! purchase - 892,500 1,189,300 2,454,000 1,189,297
Procaads from olsposal of capiial assels 38,630 - 112,461 51,084
Transfersn 572381 712,881 265,835 173,725 286,048
Transfers cut {89.624) {130,861} {352,005) {173,725} (285.94¢)
Tolat oiber fnancing sources (Uses) 519,727 1,474,520 ) 1,225,390 2,505,084 1,189,297
Met change in fund balerses & (362.373) _§ (i60,130) § (134,307) _§ 962483 $ 2,342,252
Debt service 85 a percentags of noncapilal expenditures 8.76% 5.01% 446% 6.18% §.17%
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Table 4,( Page 2}
City of Lenoir, North Carollna

Changes In Fund Balancas, Govarnmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basls of accounting)
{unaudited)

Revenues
Ad va'orem laxes
Oiher taxes and icenses
Unrastlctad ntergovemmental Tavendes
Restricled intergovernmental ravenues
Pesmits and feas
Sa'es 6nd sorvices
Investment samngs
Miscefaneous
Paymant from ABC Beard
Tolal revenues

Expenditures
Gaperal govenment
Pubic safely
Trarsporiation
Environmestal protection
Econorric and physical davelopment
Cutlural and racreatlon
Caplal catlay
Deht senvicar
Inlarest
Principal
Tola] expandiuees
Excass of Tevaptes ovar (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from installment purchase
Procesds from disposel of caplal assels
Transfars in
Transfers out

Total other francing sowsss (usas)

Net ¢hangs bn fund batances

Dabl service as a percentage of noncapital expendilures

Fiscal Year
2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2040-2011 2011-2012
s 7068806 §  B,127482 7274284 $  T.245878 7.020,833
3,264,085 3,717,662 3,470,522 3,762,006 3,340,310
1,424,792 1.517.749 §.464,036 1,624,001 1,539,300
2,574,819 2,877,185 1,410,853 938,984 3,224,873
142,652 183,048 117,900 199,682 196,548
1603518 1422771 1,481,260 1,551,101 1,669,626
268,351 122,034 14,578 8,788 7,163
338,070 194,650 542,745 249,647 86,751
{62,732 202,221 716,980 207,632 219,868
17,040,505 18,454,728 15,693 367 15,857,619 17,805,284
2,957,706 3,984,092 2,486,008 2,303,427 3001842
7,446,694 7,945,530 7,823,937 7081579 7,502,219
1,232,217 1478813 1,850,189 ° 1,418,860 1,364,885
702,618 925713 679,803 748417 775,384
2,028,156 1,506,639 526,443 580,345 2,487,837
1,660,371 2,138,032 1,704,162 1,805,049 2,023,630
520,004 1,154,897 315,225 56,850 265,098
146,195 168,793 106,730 76,843 20,971
1,066,530 331,228 861,467 778,768 908,753
17,781,072 20,224,745 15,942,024 16,352,095 18,420,389
168,833 (LI001T) (248,857). [894,476) (616,318)
305,000 621,653 525,000 355000
36,540 31,193 32,516 16,784
300,000

{200000) (60,000) {138,837)
© 341,540 552,846 "(27.484) 367,383 371,784
s 5103713 5 {1,117471) {276.141) § (307,113} (243,324)
7.03% B.72% B.13% 5.46% 5.51%

Note: Prior lo fiseal 2002-2003 principal aad Inferest on instalment

purchasas was not recorded as separate ftams,
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Table 10

City of Leneir, North Carolina

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{unaudited)
Percentage of
Fiscal Year General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Value of Per
June 30 Bonds Property Capita
2012 $ - 000% & -
2011 $ - 0.00% $ -
2010 $ - 0.00% § -
2008 § - 0.00% $ -
2008 $ - 0.00% $ -
2007 $ - 000% $ -
2008 $ - 0.00% 3 -
2005 $ - 0.00% $ -
2004 % - 0.00% § -
2003 $ 100,000 0.01% $ 5.41

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found In the notes to the financlal statements.
See Table 13 for personal income and population data,

106




Table 11

City of Lenolr, North Carolina

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2012

{unaudited)

Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct ancd
Debt Percentage Ovarlapping
Governmenial Unit Oufstanding Applicable Debt
Debt repald with property taxes
Caldwell County General Obligation Bonds % 3,945,000 28.74% 5 1,054,803
Qther debt
Caldwelt County equity purchase contracts 35,084 567 26.74% 9,616,925
Subtolal, overlapping debt 10,671,818
Lenoir direct debt 3,360,824
Total direct and overlapping debt % 14,032,642

Sources: Assessed value dala used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the
Caldwell County assessor. Debl culstanding provided by each governmental unit.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries
of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of these overlapping
governments that is bome by the residents and businesses of Lenolr. This process recognlzes
fhat, when considering the City's ablfity 1o issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debi burden
bame by the residents and businesses should be taken inte acceunt. However, this daes not
imply ihat every taxpayer Is a resident - and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debl - of
sach overlapping government.

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using
taxable properly values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of
another govemment unit's taxable assessed value that is within ihe City's boundaries and dividing it by each
uniil's total taxable assessed value. This appreach was also used for Caldwell Gounty’s olher debi.
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Table {2

Gity of Lenolr, North Carolina
Legal Dabt hargin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{unaudited)

Calculation of legal debt margln as of Juna 30, 2012

Assessed valuation - Janvery 1, 2011

Dabt Limit - B% of assessed valua
Gross long-term debt
Less statutory deductions

Bonds appllcable to waler systam

L.agal debl margin

Dabt imlt
‘otal not debl appicable to o't
Legal dabt marga

Tolel net debi applicablo lo the Bmit
as a percentage of debt Bmit

Debt Emil
Total nat cebt applicable lo Tt
Lagal debf margin

Total net debt applicatie to the limit
av a percantage of debt imit

Hote: Underd, C. Stalu'es the City's oulstanding debt shicuid not exceed 8% of lolal assessed property

value less slatutory daductons,
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$  1,477,678.540
$ 118,214,283
$ 16,502,688
- 16,502 686
_$ 108,711,697
Fiscal Year
2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2008 20052008 2008-2007
5 99,691,340 § 61,860,804 § 81178633 § 102,141406 § 102277265
20208372 19,204,349 19,045,329 22,603,405 21,387,809
5 79502068 § 72656415 § 721433304 § 79,538,091 $ 80,889,648
20.32% 2091% 20.85% 22.13% 20.91%
Fiscal Year
2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2014 2011-2012
$ 104757860 S 119393309 & 114886842 5 (15475883 3 118,214,283
16,086,321 19,643,613 17,360,478 18,879,354 " 15,502,683
5 95791539 3§ 99,855,595 $ 97626364 § 93,595,129 $ 101,711,697
18.10% 16.37% 15.10% 16,35% 13.98%




Table 13

City of Lenelr, North Carolina
Bemographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

{unaudited)
Personal Per Capita
Calendar Income Personal Unemployment

Year Population {In Millions) Income Rate

2011 18,261 * * 13.5%
2010 18,261 3 2,238 $ 26,958 12.4%
2009 19,064 $ 2,235 $ 27,969 13.4%
2008 18,852 8 2,245 % 28,127 10.7%
2007 18,954 $ 2,182 $ 27,240 7.4%
2006 18,588 $ 2,177 E 27,520 7.8%
2005 18,479 $ 2,086 $ 26,480 7.8%
2004 18,458 $ 2,039 ) 26,005 7.3%
2003 18,492 $ 1,984 $ 25,148 7.9%
2002 18,492 3 1,845 % 25,235 8,1%

Sources; Per capila parsonal lncome and personal income are for Caldwell County and is provided by the U.8. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Fopulation fs for the Clty of Lenolr and provided by the L.8. Census. Unemployment rate is for the City of Lenoir and
provided by the N.C, Employinient Security Commission

* Indicates noi available
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Table 14

City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Principal Employers

Current Year and Ten Years Ago
{unaudited)

2012 2002
Range of Range of
Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank
Caldwell County Schools 1,000+ 1
Marchants Distributors 1,000+ 2
Bernhardt Furniture Co., Inc. 500-999 3 1,000+ 2
Caldwe!l Memorial Hospital 500-999 4 500999 4
Caldwell Community College and Tech Instifute £00-999 5
Wal-Mart Assoclates, Inc. 500-995 6
Caldwell County 500-999 7 500-999 5
Universaf Mental Heaith Services 500-999 8
Broyhlfl Furniture Industrias, Inc. 500-999 9 1,000+ 1
Thomasville Furniture Industries, Inc. 250499 i0
Fairfield Chair Co. 250-499 1 250-499 10
City of Lenoir 250-409 12
Kincaid Furniture Co,, Inc. 250-499 13 1,000+ 3
Lowe's Home Centsrs 250-499 14
Rpm Woed Finishes Group 250-489 16
Greer Laboratories 100-249 16
Avery Dannison 100-248 17
Vantage Foods 100-249 18
Maridian Automotive Systams (Magna) 100-249 19 250-499 7
Bemis Manufacturing 100-249 20
Homecare Management Corp. 250-499 <]
Saaled Air Comoration 250-499 8
Nacco Materials Handling Group, Inc. 250-489 9

Source: Employmant Security Commission of NG

Note:

Employment data Is enly avallable in ranges.
Data for 2002 Is only available for top ten employers.
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Tabls 15
ity of Lenalr, Horth Garalina

Full-Bme-Equivalent City Governmant Employees by FunctiondProegram

Last Ten Fisez! Yoars

{ungdied)
Ful)-time-Equivalent Employees 23 of June 30
2003 2004 2005 2008 2007

General Governmerd

Admin'sirativa 120 1.0 120 0.0 125

Buiding Malntenaace 58 490 40 5.0 50

Engneerng 20 30 3.0 30 3.0

Cemeterlas 30 3.0 30 1.0
Vehicie Services 810 55 40 490 4.0
Publlc Safety

Poice 745 77.0 750 105 13.0

Fle 620 62.0 830 £0.0 &0.0
Transportation

Sirgets 160 180 13.0 15.0 12.0
Environmental Protection

Santalion 150 13.0 110 20 13.0
Economic and Physical Development

Downtown Cistrict 1.6 20 20 20

Planning 3.0 3.8 30 30 A8
Culture and Rucreation

Centors and Parks 73 10.5 10.0 a0 14.0

Aquatic and Fitness Center 130 145 15.0 17.0 18.5

Landseaping £0 2 70 a5 6.0
Yiater and Sewar Ulility

Rernhardt Water Treatment Plant 90 8.5 X 80 a0

Waler Distribustion 139 9.9 16.0 11,0 15.0

Water Resources

Wastewvater Cofection 5.0 7.0 60 6.0 6.

Wastewaler Prefreatment 3.0 30 34 3.0 3.0
Gunpeywdor and Lower Cregk

Viaslawater Trealment Plants 1.0 o 10,0 11.0 110
To'a! 2650 282.0 2710 262.0 2720
Full-lims-Equivalent Employeas as of June 30
2008 2009 2019 2011 2012

General Goyernment )

Administrative 1035 14.0 13.0 146 15,6

Bulding Maintanance 5.0 6.0 6.0 60 80

Englneeting 30 3.0 20 20 20

Gemeleries 10 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Vehide Services 4.0 4.0 4.0 40 4.0
Public Safety

Pclca 78.0 760 78.0 7.5 7.0

Fire 3.0 880 65.0 66.0 66.0
Yransportation

Strgels 13.0 14.5 145 14.5 145
Environniental Protection

Sanitation 115 25 i2.6 134 126
Economlc and Physical Development

Dowmitevn Disiiel 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.6 20

Planrirg 40 50 §0 5.0 5.0
Cultura and Recreation

Centers and Parks 31.0 2690 289 218 26,0

Aquatic and Fittass Center 220 225 21.0 220 2.0

Lendscaping 80 55 6.5 75 a6
Vialer and Sewer UtHity

Bemhardt Yater Treatment Plant a0 20 2.0 99 4.0

Water Distribution 7.0 13.0 14.0 14.¢ 140

Water Resputees &0 50 7.0 7.0

\astewater Colection 80 6.0 [-44] 50 45

Wastewater Pretreatment 3.0 30 3.0 30 e
Gunprader and Lowaer Craek

Weslevater Treatmenl Plants 11.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 11.0

Tental 3020 300.6 305.5 312.0 3OS
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Table 1§
Clty of Lenoir, Norlh Carollna

Qperating fndlcators by FunctiondProgram

Last Ten Fiscal Years
{unawdited)

LA

Date of Incorporation: 1851

Form of Geverament: Councliand Manager

Area |n Squars Mites: 184

Fiscal Year

PragramiFuncton 2002-2003 20032004 2004-2006 2005-20G6 20062007
Police

Physical arrests 2524 1.546 3,402 1,878 2099

Encident reporls 2816 220 1,471 2,242 2087

Pariing violalons 1815 2577 2,169 1,768 1484

Citations Issued 2955 3,269 4,057 4432 3,850
Fire

Col's ansvared 1854 1.878 1,927 2,403 2,599

Inzpections 454 413 509 422 430
Sanltation

Refuse colected (lons per day) 28.40 * * 48.64 4571
Streats

Skeel reswlacing (mies) 3.00 0.00 276 275 1.00
Parks and Recreatlon

AquaticiFitness memberships * * * 540 1,085

AquaticiFitness admissions * * * *

Youth sports pasicipants 542 588 E56 366 812

Aduit sports participants 328 417 245 203 320
Water system

New connections o7 39 89 78 58

Walsr maln braaks 30 81 34 52 43

Nuenber of ity cuslomsis 8,884 8,138 9478 9,544 9,847

Da'ty avg consumpton ln mlfon galions 6.2 62 8.2 83 64
Wastewater system

Rumber of ulility customars T.237 7.489 7810 7,851 8,324

Daty avg {reatrment In mifon gafons 3,576 328 3.28 292 341

Figcal Yaar

Program/Function 20072009 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-20%1 2011-2012
Police

Phiysical arrests 1,842 1,881 1918 1.938 2,179

Incident reports 2.168 2136 222t 2051 1,946

Pasking viclatons 1442 1,028 858 663 349

Chtatons lssued 2837 2,062 2548 251 2845
Fire

Cals answered 2417 2414 2,586 2,663 ZA31

Inspechons . 37 31 405 a1 297
Sanlatlon

Refuse coflacted (tons per day} 3TT 27,68 2292 27.26 2593
Strasls

Sueet resurfacing (rniles) 1.50 1.36 075 075 00
Parks and Recreation

AguaticFilness momborships 506 743 1,353 $.063 1,906

Aqualic/Fitness admisslons 789 7440 9,045 11,862 11,640

Youth sports participants 1008 1040 1034 145 1070

Aduit sports part’cipants 05 558 324 268 285
Water system

New connections 39 35 25 30 25

Water mah bresks 43 L] 17 28 A

Number of ulikly customers 8,702 9,743 9670 8673 6,583

Oa'ly avg consumption in mifien gatons 8.2 58 86 6.2 T2
Wastewator system

Humber of uttty customers 8403 8,463 8,320 B,209 8119

Dally avg reatment In mition gelions 341 382 4,25 343 3.4

Sources: Varous Clty departmants
* indicates nol avaiable
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Tabla 17

City of Lenolr, Herth Carolina

Capltal Asset Statistles by Funglion/Pragram
Lagt Ton Fiscal Years

{unaudied)
Flscal Ysar

ProgramiFunciion 2002-2003 2003-2004 __2004-2003 20052006 2008-2007
Police

Stalons 1 1 1 1 1

Substations 5 & 5 5 5

Patrol urits 72 &8 38 59 52
Fire

Statfons 2 2 2 2 2
Sanitation

Coleclion trucks 8 6 [3 ] 6
Strests

}Xles of paved streels 107.41 110.68 110.52 112.86 119.78

Mies of unpaved strasts 319 3.06 3.02 302 2.69

Streol fighls 2,384 2,556 2486 2,461 2645
Parks and Recreation

Commurlty centers 3 3 3 3 4

Parks 2 2 2 2 4

Swimming poois 2 2 2 2 2

Tennis courts 12 12 8 3 8

Basebalysoltbal damends <] [5 [5) 8 10

Soccer fields 11 11 1" i1 11

MNes of greenway 0 0 2 4,38 7.20
Water systern

hiles of water Fnes 193.82 169,25 2018 2078 .8

Fa hydrants ga7 231 a9 991 952

Storage capacity (mitons of gal'ons) 134 13.4 13.4 13.4 13.4

Kaxmum dafy capacity (miions of galons) 12 12 12 1z 12

Treaslment Plants i 1 i 1 1
Wastewates sysiem

Mii'es of sewago lines 175,72 175,72 176,78 196.07 205,07

Kiles of storm sewms 20 a| 25 20 20

Haximurm daly capachty (miens of gelions) 8 [} B & 8

Treatrment Plants 2 2 2 2 2

Fiscal Year

Pregram/Function 2007-2008 2008-2008 2069-2010 2010-2011 2014-2012
Pollce

Statlons 5 1 1 i H

Substations ] 5 5 ] §

Patrel units 52 &2 52 52 52
Fire

Sietlons 2 2 2 2 2
Sanltation

Cotliectlon trucks & 6 7 7 7
Streets

Mies of paved streats 120,52 121.55 121.55 121,55 12555

Mias of unpaved sheels 2.65 2454 264 2.64 264

Streol Eghts 2,556 2,567 2,576 2,517 2,576
Parks and Recreatlon

Communty centers 4 4 4 4 4

Parks 4 4 4 4 4

Bwimming poo's 2 2 2 2 2

Tenns courls i) 8 g 8 8

Baseballfsolpal diamonds 10 i¢ 10 10 19

Soccer fields 12 12 12 12 12

s of greemvay 7.80 6.00 8.00 10.00 10.00
Water system

tX1es of water Enas 208.0 2184 2194 2184 2194

Flea hydrants 092 1,070 1,070 1070 1,070

Storage capacily {milions of gaBons) 13.4 134 13.4 134 134

Maxdmum daily capecity (milions of gatons) 12 12 12 12 i2

Tesatment Plants i i 1 1 1
Wastewaler sysiem

Mites of sewage [nes 20507 21511 215141 21511 21611

I#{os of slorn sewers 20 20 20 20 20

Htendimum daty capacity (m'lions of gallens) 8 ] [:3 8 8

Treatmen! Plants 2 2 2 2 2
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S. Eric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC AGCGOUNTANT
Y ” 403 Soulh Green Sireet

P.O. Box 1476
Morganton, NG 28680-1476
Telephone (828) 438-1065
Fax (828) 438-9117

Report On Internal Control Ovex Financial Raporting
And on Compliance and Other Mattors Based on an Budit of
Financlal Statements Performed In Accordance Hith
Government Auditing Standaxds

To the Honorabkle Mayor and
Members of the City Councll
Ccity of Lenoir, North Carclina

We have audited ths accompanying financial statements of Lhe
governmental activities, the business-type activities, lhe aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregated
romaining fund information of the City of Lenolr, North Carolina, as of and
for the year endad June 30, 2012, which collectively comprises the City of
Lenolzr’s basic financial statements dated August 24, 2012, We did not audit
the Financial statsments of the Clty of Lenoir ABC Board. Those financial
statements were aundited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been
furnisghed to us and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included For the City of Lenoir ABC Boaxd, is based solsly on the reports of
the other auditers. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards genexally accepted in the United States of Amerilca and the
standards applicable to financial aundits gontained in Government Ruditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The
financial statements of the City of Lenolr ABC Board wexe not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing-Standaxds.

Internal Contxol Over Financlal Reporting

Management of the City of Lenoixr is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control ovexn financial reporting. In planning
and performing our andit, we gonsidered the ¢ity of Lenoir’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinicns on t+he financial statements, but not
for the purpose of ¢xpressing an oplnion on the sffectiveness of the City of
TLenoir’s internal control over financial reporting. BAccordingly, wWe do not
express an opinion on the effectiveneas of the City of Lenoir’s internal
control over financlal reporting.

A deficlency in internal control exists when the design or operatien of
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functjons, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficlency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal contxol such that there is a
reagonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corracted on a timely

bhasis, -
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To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
city of Lenolr, North Carolina

Our consideration of Internal control ovex financial reporting was for
the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this sectien and was
not designed to identify all deficiencles in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control ovex financial reporting that
Wwe consider ko be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control ovex financial reporting,
described in the accompanying schedule of f£indings and questioned costs as
2012-1 and 2012-2 thakt we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting. A significant deficilency is a deficiency
or a combination of deficiencies, 3n internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to nerit attention by those
charged wlth governancs.

Conmpliance and Other Matters

ns part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the City of
Lenoir’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
trasts of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.,
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we did not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances off noncompliancea and other
matters that ave required to be reported undax Government Auditing Standaxds.

The City of Lenoir’s response to the findings identified in our audit
ig desceribed in the accompanying scheduls of findings and questioned costs.
We did not audit the City of Lenoix’s response and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the aundit
committea, management, others within the organization, members of the City
Counoll, and Federa) and State awarding agencies and pasgs-through entitiles
and is not intended and should not be used by anyene other than these
specific parties,

i f_(/’).ﬂ
8. Fric Bowman, P.A,
Certified Public Accountant

Morganton, Worth Carolina
August 24, 2012
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S, Fric Bowman, P.A,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
) 403 South Green Street

P.Q. Box 1478

Morganien, NG 28680-1478
Tolophone {828) 438-1085
Fax (828) 438-9117

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable
Te Its Major Federal Program And Internal Control
Over Compliance In Bccordance With OMB Circular A-133
and tho State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Clty Council of the
City of Lenolr, North Carcolina

Compliance

We have audited the City of Lewnclr, North Carolina, compliance with the
types of compliance reguirements described in the (OMB) Circular A-133
Complisnce Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in Noxth
Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a divect
and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended Juns 30,
2012, The City of Lencir's major federal program is ldentified in the
surmary of anditor's results soction of the accompanying schedule of findings
and guestioned costs., Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the
responsibility of the City of Lenoiz's wanagement. OQur responsihlility is to
express an opinion on the City of Lenoir’s compliance pased on our audit.

Ve conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with awditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of Buerica; the standaxds
applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptwxoller General of the United States; OMB Cixcoular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non—Profit Organizations, and the
State Single Audit Implementatlon Act. Those standacds, OMB Cixeular B-133,
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that wa plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance reguirements referred Lo ghove that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about tha City of Lenoirx's
compliance with those requirements and pexrforming such othex procedures as We
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basls for our opinion. Our aundit doss net provide a
legal determination on the City of Lenolir's complianee with these

raquirements.

In our opinion, the City of Lenoir complied, in all matexrial rnespects,
with the regquirements referred to above that could have a dirsct and material
offect on its major Federal program for the year ended June 30, 2012,
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To the Honorable Mayor and
Membera of the City Council
City of-Lenoir, North Carolina

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Lenoir is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal contrel over compliance with requirements of
laws, regulations, c¢ontracts and grants. applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Lencir's
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct
and materiasl effect on a major federal program to determine our auditing
procedures for tha purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to
taest and report on internal control over compliance In accordancs with OMB
Circular A~133 but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Lenoirfs internal control over compliance.

?Aydeficiency in internal control ovexr compliance exists when:the design
or opeﬁﬁtlon of a control over Lompliance doas not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A nmaterial weakness in
internal centrol over compliance is a deflcisnay, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that thaere is a
reasonable possibllity that materlal noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the

" limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to ldentify all deficienciss in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficlencies in internal control over conpliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above,

. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit
commdttee, management, othews within the organization, members of the Cily
Council, and Ffederal awarding agencies and paas-through entities and is not
intendad to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties,

£ Eric Bowman, P.A.
Certified Public Accountant

Morganton, MNorth Carolina
Angust 24, 2012
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S. Fric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
403 Soulh Grean Slreat

P.O. Box 1476

Morganton, NG 28680-1476
Telephons (828) 438-1066
Fax {828) 438-9117

Report On Compliance With Reguirements Applicable To
Each of Its Major State Programs And Internal Control
Over Compliance In Accordaumce With Applicable Sactiony of
OMB Cireular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Honorable Mayor and
Mambers of the City Council of the
City of Lenoir, NWorth Caralina

Compliance

We have audlted the compliance of the City of Lenoir, Noxth Carolina,
with the types of cémpliance reguirements desaribad in the Audit Manual for
Govermmental Buditors in North Carolina, isgued by the Local Governwent
Conmmission, that are appiicable Yo sach of its major State programs for the
vyear ended June 30, 2012, The City of Lencir's najor State programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's xesults section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, requlations, contracts and granits applicable to each of its major
State programs are the responsibility of the City of Lenolr's managsment.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Lenolr'’s
compliance based on our auwdit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of Americar the standards
applicable to financial audits contalned in Goyernment Auditing Standards,
tssued by the Comptroller General of the Unlted States, applicable sections
of OMB Circular A-133 as described in the Budit Manual for Governnental
Auditors in Worth Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Thosa standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State
gingle Andit Tmplementatlion Act raguire that we plan and perform the audit to
obkain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major State program cccurred. An audit includes
examining, on a Lest basls, evidence about the City of Lenoir's compliance
with thosa reguirements and performing such othexr procedures as we consldered
neoessary in the circumstances., We helieve that our audit provides a
reascnable basis for our opinion. Our awdit does not provide a legal
determination on the City of Lenoir’s compliance with those weguirements.

in our opinion, the Gity of Lencir complied, in all materlal respects,
with the requirements referryed to above that are applicable to cach of its
major State programs forx the year ended June 30, 2012.
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To the Honorable Mayor and
dembers of the City Counoil .
Ccity of Lenoir, North Carolina

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Lenoir is responsible for establishing and
maintaining sffective internal control over compliange with requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. 1In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Lenoix's
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major State program to debermine our awnditing
procedures for tha purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accoxdance with
applicable sections of OMB Cireular A-133 and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act, but not for expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Lenoir’s internal control over compliance. B

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design
or oparation of & control over compliance does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correot, noncompllance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A materlal weakness in
$nternal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
regquirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the
limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would
not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencles or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies 1n internal control over compliance that we conslder to bs
material weaknesses, as defined abovs, :

This report is intended solely for the infoxmation and use of the audit
committee, management, others within the organization, members of the City
Councll, and Pederal and State awarding agencies and pass~through entities,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specific parties,
e Z {ﬁlﬂffz///

8, BEric Bowman, P.A.
Certified Public Accountant

Morganton, North Caxolina
August 24, 2012

119




CITY OF LENQIR, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ﬁND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YERR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of aunditor's report issued: Ungualified
Internal control over financial reporiing:
#* Material weakness{es) identifled? . yes ¥ no
* Significant deficiencies identified
that are not consldered to be

material weaknesses X ves none reported

Noncompliance material to financlal

statements noted yes % no

Federal. Awards

Internal control over major federal programs!

* Material weakness{es)} identifled? ' yves Z no
* gignificant deficiencies identified
that are not congidered to be
naterial weaknesses yes ¥ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major fedaral programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section\
510{a)} of Clrcular A-133

»

yes

no

Identification of major faderal programs:

CFDA Numbex Mames of Pederal Program or Cluster

U.8, Depaxtment of Housing and Urban Development
14,239 Home Investments Partnexrship
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CITY OF LENOIR, NORTH CRROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST3

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section I. Summary of Buditor's Results

Pollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs $300 000

Dudites qualified as low-risk auditee? X ves no

State Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

lx

Fits)

* Malberial weakness{es) ldentified? yes

+ Significaent deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be )
material weaknesses yes ¥ none reporxrted

Type of auditor's report issued on conpliance
for major S8tate programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclesed that are requirad

to ba reported in accordance with the State

Single Audit Implementation Act yea X ne
1dentification of major State programnsi

Program Name

Powell Bill Program

GClean Water Parinors
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gection II.

Findings Related to the Audif of the Basic

Financial Statements of City of Lenoix:

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

122

2012-1

Condition: The City does not incorporate an
internal auddlt function (person).

Criteria: Dus to the complexity and diverse
type of financial transactions an
internal audit function is nseded.

Effect: Inkernal controls are less effective
without an internal audit function.

Cause: ‘Due to the size of the municipality
it has not been consldered cost
sffective.

Recommendation: Hire an additional employee famlliar
wlth governmental accounting
transactions to provide this service.

Management

Response: Tt is not sconomically feasible to
hire additional staff at this tims.

2012-1

Condition: The City overexpended several
departments in the General Fund and
Enterprise Fund totaling $860 271 and
$53 980 respectively, .

Criteria: All Local Governments are to adopt a
palanced budget and make necessaty
amendments to the original budget as
conditions dictate.

Effect: Funds were expended out of departments
before the appropriate budgat
amendments were made.

Cause! Auditor reclassiflcations and unforeseen
accounta payable.

Recommendation: The City should not expend any funds unless
there is adeguate amounts in the particular
deparxtment budget,

Management

Response! The City agrees with this finding.




CITY OF LENOTR, NORTH CAROLINA

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNZ 30, 2012

Tinding: 2012-1
B, Name of Contact Person: - panny Gilbert, Finance Officer
B. Corrvective Action: It 1s not economically

feasible to hire additional
staff at this time.

C. pProposed Completion
Date; N/A
Finding: 2012-2
A. Nane of Coantact Person: Danny Gilbert, Finance Officer
B. Corrective Action: The City will continue to
anend the budget as
conditions warrant.
C. proposed Completion
Date: The Board will ifmplement the

above as soon as possible,
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CITY OF LENOIR

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEBR AUDIT FINDINGS

¥OR THE YERR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

2011 have been coxrected

All audit findings for the prior year June 30,
This is not deened

with the exception of hiring an internal auditor.
practical at the present time.
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